
Chairperson:  Thomas Lutzow 
Vice-Chairperson:  Maria Perez 
Secretary:  Michael Davis 
Senior Executive Assistant:  Jodi Mapp, 257-5202 

MILWAUKEE COUNTY MENTAL HEALTH BOARD 

Thursday, June 18, 2020 - 9:00 A.M. 
Teleconference Meeting 

MINUTES 

PRESENT: Michael Davis, Kathie Eilers, Rachel Forman, Sheri Johnson, Walter Lanier, Jon 
Lehrmann, Thomas Lutzow, Mary Neubauer, Maria Perez, Duncan Shrout, James 
Stevens, and Brenda Wesley 

SCHEDULED ITEMS: 

1. Welcome. 

Chairman Lutzow welcomed Board Members, Staff, and everyone listening in to the Milwaukee 
County Mental Health Board’s remote/virtual meeting. 

2. Approval of the Minutes from the April 23, 2020, Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 
Meeting. 

MOTION BY: (Forman) Approve the February 27, 2020, Meeting Minutes.  10-0 
MOTION 2ND BY: (Neubauer) 
AYES: Davis, Eilers, Forman, Lanier, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, Shrout, Stevens, 

and Wesley – 10 
NOES: 0 

3. Department of Administrative Services Quarterly Update on the State of Milwaukee 
County’s Interests and Matters Related to the Behavioral Health Division. 

Joseph Lamers, Budget Director, Department of Administrative Services 

Mr. Lamers explained COVID-19 has had a severe impact on previous projections for the budget 
years 2020 and 2021.  There is also a high level of uncertainty regarding future impacts.  The 
Administration has been working diligently on a solution.  He provided an overview of current 
fiscal projections as well as the 2021 outlook. 

In order to close the gap for 2020, a fiscal administrative order was issued shortly after the 
pandemic placing freezes on hiring and operational expenses, land sales were processed, a 
freeze will be placed on contingency, and monies seen from the reduction in fringe due to a 
decline in healthcare service usage will be added to the County’s bottom line. 

2



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

June 18, 2020  2 of 10 

It is extremely difficult to foresee what 2021 will look like.  It will depend on the scale of economic 
recovery, whether operations are back up and running to normal capacity, and what happens 
with healthcare expenses.  A range of impacts are being considered.  There is some economic 
recovery expected, but sales tax and some program revenues are unlikely to bounce back. 
Mr. Lamers expressed even though difficulties have been encountered with the assembly of the 
2021 Budget process, it is being prepared with an optimistic outlook.  If circumstances do not 
play out as expected, freezes along with other remedies will continue.  The County is expecting a 
larger debt reserve use, which is used for emergency situations such as this.  Centralized 
savings will also continue to be sought. 
 
As it directly relates to the Behavioral Health Division (BHD), BHD was exempt from certain 
freezes.  However, BHD’s fringe surplus will fall to the County’s bottom line.  The County does 
remain cognizant of the issues related to the Systems Improvement Agreement. 
 
Questions and comments ensued. 
 
This item was informational. 
 

4.  Corporation Counsel Crisis Services Legal Opinion Update. 
 
Anne Kearney, Deputy, Corporation Counsel 
 
Attorney Kearney stated the engagement letter is currently being constructed.  There are several 
workgroups hammering out the operational details.  With Von Briesen’s assistance, a binding 
letter of intent is being drafted.  It will capture the terms agreed upon with the private healthcare 
system provider representatives.  Preparation of the drafts and negotiations are gaining 
momentum.  The goal is to have a letter of intent inked by early September.  To follow will be a 
comprehensive suite of legal agreements. 
 
This item was informational. 
 

5.  Administrative Update. 
 
Michael Lappen, Administrator, Behavioral Health Division (BHD) 
 
Mr. Lappen explained the continued impact COVID-19 has had on BHD by stating the hospital 
continues to operate at a reduced census since going to single-bed rooms.  This dramatically 
impacts revenues.  Approximately thirty patients have been tested using the COVID-19 swabs.  
The non-FDA approved antibodies test has also been used in the emergency room as an 
adjunct.  The Board was informed about the first confirmed COVID-19 positive patient previously.  
The second was identified earlier in the week.  The individual tested positive at a different 
hospital.  BHD continues to have a protocol in place.  Psychiatric Crisis Services (PCS) screens 
everyone before they enter the hospital.  If people screen positive, they are moved on to the next 
level of screening and testing.  Supplies such as Personal Protective Equipment (PPE), hand 
sanitizer, and peroxide wipes are maintained and fully stocked.  Detailed cleaning and universal 
masking protocols have been implemented. 



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

June 18, 2020  3 of 10 

 
The Systems Improvement Agreement consultants did a walkthrough of PCS and provided 
information as to the changes required.  Many of the changes are also needed to safely address 
incoming patients who are potentially exposed to COVID-19.  The walkthrough data is expected 
to be finalized soon, and the BHD team will then work with the County facilities team.  BHD has 
moved forward with quite a few of other improvements.  The consultants are working with the 
BHD team to keep costs as reasonable as possible.  Quality has been the area that has made 
the most progress and growth.  There have also been several changes to policies and 
procedures and a substantial improvement in documentation related to governance.  An 
extension of timelines related to COVID-19 was granted. 
 
Mr. Lappen went on to discuss staff engagement and grants awarded. 
 
Questions and comments ensued. 
 
This item was informational. 
 

6.  Mental Health Board Finance Committee Professional Services Contracts 
Recommendation. 
 

• 2020 Contract 
➢ Kane Communications 

 
Jennifer Bergersen, Chief of Operations, Behavioral Health Division 
 
Professional Services Contracts focus on facility-based programming, supports functions that are 
critical to patient care, and are necessary to maintain hospital and crisis services licensure.  This 
specific Kane Communications contract is for nine months, focuses on youth services, and is 
funded through grant dollars.  The contract supports the promotion of Wraparound Milwaukee 
program resources and services to assist youth with connections to care. 
 
The Board was informed the Finance Committee unanimously agreed to recommend approval of 
the 2020 Professional Services Contract delineated in the corresponding report. 
 
MOTION BY: (Davis) Approve the 2020 Professional Services Contract Delineated in 
   the Corresponding Report.  9-0 
MOTION 2ND BY: (Perez) 
AYES:  Davis, Eilers, Forman, Lanier, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, Stevens,  
   and Wesley – 9 
NOES:  0 
EXCUSED:  Shrout – 1 
 

  



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

June 18, 2020  4 of 10 

7.  Mental Health Board Finance Committee Purchase-of-Service Contracts 
Recommendation. 
 
Amy Lorenz, Deputy Administrator, Community Access to Recovery Services (CARS), 
Behavioral Health Division 
 

• 2020 Contracts 

• 2020 Contract Amendments 
 
Purchase-of-Service Contracts for the Provision of Adult and Child Mental Health Services and 
Substance Use Disorder Services were reviewed.  An overview was provided detailing the 
various adult program contracts and amendments. 
 
As previously reported, 2019 contracts for Community Access Points were extended until 
June 30, 2020, as the Behavioral Health Division continued to work on the previously posted 
Request for Proposals (RFP) appeals.  In May, it was determined by Behavioral Health Division 
(BHD) Leadership to cancel the RFP and intent to award.  BHD reached out to the four current 
provider Access Points to request they continue to contract with BHD but within a fee-for-service 
environment.  All four vendors agreed to continue, but three months is needed to transition the 
program to a fee-for-service structure.  The purchase-of-service contracts are for three months. 
 
The Board was informed the Finance Committee unanimously agreed to recommend approval of 
the 2020 Purchase-of-Service Contracts and Amendments delineated in the corresponding 
report. 
 
MOTION BY: (Perez) Approve the Wisconsin Community Services, Inc., Contract  
   Delineated in the Corresponding Report.  8-0-1 
MOTION 2ND BY: (Davis) 
AYES:  Davis, Eilers, Forman, Lanier, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, and Stevens – 8 
NOES:  0 
ABSTENTIONS: Wesley - 1 
EXCUSED:  Shrout - 1 
 
MOTION BY: (Perez) Approve the Balance of 2020 Purchase-of-Service Contract  
   Amendments and 2020 Contracts Delineated in the Corresponding  
   Report.  9-0 
MOTION 2ND BY: (Eilers) 
AYES:  Davis, Eilers, Forman, Lanier, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, Stevens, 
   and Wesley – 9 
NOES:  0 
ABSTENTIONS: 0 
EXCUSED:  Shrout - 1 
 

  



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

June 18, 2020  5 of 10 

8.  Mental Health Board Finance Committee Fee-for-Service Agreements Recommendation.  
 
Amy Lorenz Deputy Administrator, Community Access to Recovery Services (CARS), Behavioral 
Health Division 
 
Fee-for-Service Agreements are for the Provision of Adult and Child Mental Health Services and 
Substance Use Disorder Services.  An overview was provided detailing the program agreements, 
which provide a broad range of support services for adults and children with serious emotional 
disturbances and their families. 
 
The Board was informed the Finance Committee unanimously agreed to recommend approval of 
the 2020 Fee-for-Service Agreement Amendment delineated in the corresponding report. 
 
MOTION BY: (Perez) Approve the 2020 Fee-for-Service Agreement Amendment  
   Delineated in the Corresponding Report.  8-0 
MOTION 2ND BY: (Davis) 
AYES:  Davis, Eilers, Forman, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, Stevens and Wesley – 8 
NOES:  0 
EXCUSED:  Lanier and Shrout - 2 
 

9.  Employment Agreement. 
 
An amendment is being requested to an existing employment agreement.  A psychiatrist in Crisis 
Services has achieved ten years’ experience post residency.  Two tiers were established for 
Crisis Services psychiatrists when the position was placed under employment agreements in 
2017.  The tiers include a junior attending level and a senior attending level.  Reaching the senior 
attending level aligns with senior pay status.  This enables the Behavioral Health Division to 
retain staff and be competitive in the market. 
 
The Board was informed the Finance Committee unanimously agreed to recommend approval of 
the Employment Agreement Amendment delineated in the corresponding report. 
 
MOTION BY: (Perez) Approve the Employment Agreement Amendment.  9-0 
MOTION 2ND BY: (Davis) 
AYES:  Davis, Eilers, Forman, Lanier, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, Stevens,   
   and Wesley – 9 
NOES:  0 
EXCUSED:  Shrout - 1 
 

10.  Mental Health Board Governance Ad Hoc Committee Update. 
 
Board Member Eilers explained the Governance Committee met on June 5, 2020.  The 
Chairwoman of the Quality Committee summarized the issues the Quality Committee were 
addressing and how they relate to the Board.  The Committee was supportive of those efforts 
and assured the Quality Committee it would be supported fully by the Board.  Other issues 
discussed related to the role of the Committee in terms of having an evaluative role regarding the 



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

June 18, 2020  6 of 10 

Board’s functioning and a nominating committee to vet potential members of the Board.  Board 
Member Eilers will meet with the County Executive’s Chief of Staff to discuss the vacancy that 
was created by Robert Curry’s resignation.  Board Members were encouraged to submit names 
of strong candidates.  Other items discussed include creating a grievance and appeal process 
and how the Board might respond to systemic racism and provide services cognizant of it.  
Systemic racism will be a topic of discussion at the next scheduled Governance Committee 
meeting. 
 
Questions and comments ensued. 
 
This was an informational item. 
 

11.  Potential Third-Party Fiscal Agents for the Provision of Mental Health Board Support Staff 
Oversight. 
 
Matt Fortman, Fiscal Administrator, Department of Health and Human Services 
 
Mr. Fortman stated the Request for Proposals for the fiscal agent is live.  It will close in late July.  
There will be a scoring process, and a recommendation will be brought to the Board for 
consideration.  If approved, the Board can move forward with hiring for the Board Analyst 
position. 
 
This was an informational item. 
 

12.  Mental Health Board Finance Committee Update. 
 
Matt Fortman, Fiscal Administrator, Department of Health and Human Services 
 
Mr. Fortman provided an overview stating the Behavioral Health Division (BHD) was given a $2.5 
million tax levy reduction for 2021 due to the issues discussed by Director Lamers in Item 3.  
BHD has achieved the target with no cuts to services through increases in revenue and 
elimination of some vacant positions.  BHD was also able to expand the High-Fidelity Act Team, 
the Youth Crisis Stabilization Facility, and other exciting projects funded through grants.  
Revenue projections were optimistically made.  There are still a lot of unknowns and uncertainty.  
There are also opportunities for additional grant and federal funds.  However, if the revenue 
reduction related to the bed capacity persists into 2021 and there is no other grant revenue or 
other options to offset that reduction in revenue, decisions will have to be made and brought 
before the Board in late 2020 or early 2021. 
 
Mr. Fortman also mentioned the ability to submit amendments to the budget via a link on the 
Board’s webpage is live and active.  It is a template that any Milwaukee County resident can 
complete.  There was an initial deadline of tomorrow for submissions but was extended through 
the weekend.  Amendments will be collected and scored next week with a summary to be 
provided to the Finance Committee ahead of their June 25, 2020, meeting. 
 
This was an informational item. 



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

June 18, 2020 7 of 10 

13. Inpatient Proposed Key Performance Indicators. 

Board Member Neubauer explained the new format of the reports, which are before the Board for 
consideration. 

Questions and comments ensued regarding the proposed indicators. 

The Board was informed the Quality Committee, at their meeting on June 1, 2020, unanimously 
agreed to recommend approval of the additional proposed inpatient key performance indicators 
and use of the newly updated dashboard format reflected. 

MOTION BY: (Neubauer) Approve the Additional Proposed Inpatient Key  
Performance Indicators and Use of the Newly Updated Dashboard 
Format.  9-0 

MOTION 2ND BY: (Forman) 
AYES: Davis, Eilers, Forman, Lanier, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, Stevens, 

and Wesley – 9 
NOES: 0 
EXCUSED: Shrout - 1 

14. Quality Committee Documents and Policies Package. 

• Hospital Quality Assurance Performance Improvement (QAPI) & Patient Safety Annual
Plan

• Clinical Contract Management Policy

• Hospital Scope of Services

• Grievance Policy and Committee

Board Member Neubauer provided a comprehensive description of the Quality documents 
package item by item.  Corrections were made to some documents at the Quality Committee 
level. 

Questions and comments ensued. 

The Board was informed the Quality Committee, at their meeting on June 1, 2020, unanimously 
agreed to recommend approval of the Policies Package as presented and represented in the 
corresponding reports. 

MOTION BY: (Neubauer) Approve the Quality Committee’s Policies Package as 
Presented and Represented in the Corresponding Reports.  9-0 

MOTION 2ND BY: (Forman) 
AYES: Davis, Eilers, Forman, Lanier, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, Stevens, 

and Wesley – 9 
NOES: 0 
EXCUSED: Shrout - 1 



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

June 18, 2020 8 of 10 

15.  Mental Health Board Quality Committee Update. 

Board Member Neubauer, Chairwoman of the Quality Committee, reviewed topics addressed at 
the Quality Committee’s quarterly meeting.  She discussed the fourth quarter 2019 community-
based and Wraparound key performance indicator (KPI) dashboard and Community Access to 
Recovery Services (CARS) summary and metrics, children’s mobile crisis team program 
recertification and improvement, year-end client experience data, contract monitoring, hospital 
KPI dashboard and seclusion and restraint data, the Systems Improvement Agreement, the crisis 
resource center collaborative, and the status of policies and procedures. 

Questions and comments ensued. 

Ms. Bergersen stated the current state of emergency has had an impact on the health, safety, 
and wellness of individuals the Behavioral Health Division serves.  The Quality Assurance 
Performance Improvement (QAPI) Committee has identified safety enhancements and will 
continue to monitor the enhancements moving forward.  It is understood they are obviously a big 
indicator of safety and wellness for those served. 

This item was informational. 

16.  Medical Staff Organization Governing Body’s Proposed Changes to its Rules and 
Regulations. 

Dr. Shane Moisio, President, Medical Staff Organization, Behavioral Health Division 

Dr. Moisio provided a summary of notable changes proposed to the Medical Staff Organization 
Rules and Regulations. 

MOTION BY: (Eilers) Approve the Behavioral Health Division Medical Staff 
Organization Rules and Regulations as Amended.  10-0 

MOTION 2ND BY: (Stevens) 
AYES: Davis, Eilers, Forman, Lanier, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, Shrout, Stevens, 

and Wesley - 10 
NOES: 0 
EXCUSED: 0 

17.  Medical Executive Credentialing and Privileging Recommendations Report. 

Dr. Shane Moisio, President, Medical Staff Organization Behavioral Health Division 

Dr. Moisio stated under Wisconsin and Federal regulatory requirements, all physicians and other 
practitioners authorized under the scope of licensure of the hospital to provide independent care 
must be credentialed and privileged.  Dr. Moisio presented one new appointment and two 
provisional status reviews.  There are no items requiring Closed Session, and it is requested the 
recommendations as submitted be approved. 



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

June 18, 2020 9 of 10 

MOTION BY: (Perez) Approve the Medical Staff Credentialing Report and Medical 
Executive Committee Recommendations.  10-0 

MOTION 2ND BY: (Shrout) 
AYES: Davis, Eilers, Forman, Lanier, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, Shrout, Stevens, 

and Wesley – 10 
NOES: 0 
EXCUSED: 0 

18.  Adjournment. 

MOTION BY: (Neubauer) Adjourn.  10-0 
MOTION 2ND BY: (Forman) 
AYES: Davis, Eilers, Forman, Lanier, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, Shrout, Stevens, 

and Wesley – 10 
NOES: 0 
EXCUSED: 0 

This meeting was recorded.  The official copy of these minutes and subject reports, along with the 
audio recording of this meeting, is available on the Milwaukee County Behavioral Health 
Division/Mental Health Board web page. 

Length of meeting:  9:05 a.m. to 11:07 a.m. 

Adjourned, 

Jodi Mapp 

Jodi Mapp
Senior Executive Assistant 
Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

The next meeting for the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board will be a Public Hearing 
on Thursday, July 9, 2020, @ 8:00 a.m. at a 

Location to be Determined 

Visit the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board Web Page at: 

https://county.milwaukee.gov/EN/DHHS/About/Governance 

https://county.milwaukee.gov/EN/DHHS/About/Governance


SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

June 18, 2020  10 of 10 

 
 
The June 18, 2020, meeting minutes of the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board are 
hereby submitted for approval at the next scheduled regular meeting of the Milwaukee 
County Mental Health Board. 
 

  
         
Michael Davis, Secretary 
Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 
 
 
 
 



Chairperson:  Thomas Lutzow 
Vice-Chairperson:  Maria Perez 
Secretary:  Michael Davis 
Senior Executive Assistant:  Jodi Mapp, 257-5202 

MILWAUKEE COUNTY MENTAL HEALTH BOARD 
BUDGET MEETING 

Thursday, July 9, 2020 - 8:00 A.M. 
Teleconference Meeting 

MINUTES 

PRESENT: Michael Davis, Kathie Eilers, Rachel Forman, Sheri Johnson, Walter Lanier, Jon 
Lehrmann, Thomas Lutzow, Mary Neubauer, Maria Perez, Duncan Shrout, James 
Stevens, and Brenda Wesley 

SCHEDULED ITEMS: 

1. Welcome. 

Chairman Lutzow welcomed Board Members, Staff, and everyone listening in to the 
Milwaukee County Mental Health Board’s remote/virtual Budget meeting. 

2. County Executive Presentation. 

County Executive David Crowley 

The County Executive began his presentation by stating the vision for Milwaukee County is 
to become the healthiest county in Wisconsin by achieving racial equity.  Milwaukee County 
continues to recognize structural racism has long contributed to the health seen in 
communities today.  All practices and policies going forward will be viewed through a racial 
equity lens.  The Mental Health Board’s commitment to racial equity is clear. 

He spoke of the efforts and initiatives the Behavioral Health Division (BHD) has undertaken, 
which also align with this vision.  They include expanding the provider network with an 
intentional focus on improving diversity and cultural competency, improving the Request for 
Proposals process and contracting procedures to ensure systematic barriers do not keep 
providers who reflect this community from being awarded contracts, and establishing a team 
to enhance the workforce development for diversity and inclusion providing tools in 
education for managers to make sure the workplace is more inclusive and to recruit local 
talent. 

When looking at mental health, eliminating the stigma associated is key.  The County 
Executive indicated he wants to work directly with BHD to do exactly that and continue to 
build on these efforts across the organization. 

This was an informational item. 



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

July 9, 2020  2 of 4 

3.  Milwaukee County Behavioral Health Division 2021 Recommended Budget Narrative 
Presentation. 
 
Michael Lappen, Administrator, Behavioral Health Division (BHD) 
Matt Fortman, Fiscal Administrator, Department of Health and Human Services 
 
Mr. Lappen opened by conveying regret to the public for not being able to conduct this 
hearing in the traditional format.  The public’s input is truly valued, and all feedback was 
welcomed.  However, an in-person meeting was just not practical due to the circumstances 
surrounding the pandemic.  The Division worked diligently to ensure there were resources 
provided to accommodate public submissions.  Feedback was received, and staff did its 
best to incorporate that feedback into the decision making but recognizing the desire to have 
done better. 
 
It has been an extremely challenging year.  BHD’s Fiscal team was able to balance a budget 
that started off in a deficit and was able to achieve that balance without cutting any services 
or ending programs.  There were several items where savings were achieved including a 
Wisconsin Medicaid Cost Reporting (WIMCR) funding increase, an increase in Crisis 
revenue, and vacant positions were eliminated.  All these things helped offset other costs. 
 
There were also some new initiatives and expansions.  An increase in funding is expected 
from the State for the Comprehensive Community Services (CCS) program, a grant was 
received from the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) 
to create a High-Fidelity Assertive Community Treatment Team, Crisis Stabilization Houses 
will be redesigned, and there will be an increase in funding for supported employment. 
 
Risks include the assumption the census will go back to double occupancy rooms in the 
inpatient hospital at some point by the end of 2020 and a projected slight increase for 
Wraparound Milwaukee’s capitated rate.  BHD has not received final word on some of the 
Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse (AODA) grants used to fund drug and alcohol services.  The 
grants are expected, and the funds are available. 
 
Chairman Lutzow directed staff to track the vulnerabilities, risks, and assumptions as they 
come due and provide the Finance Committee with regular updates as to the status.  The 
Fiscal Administrator indicated it will be made a standing item for future Finance Committee 
meetings, along with progress made on other major budget items. He stated if there is an 
encounter where one of the risk items does not go in BHD’s favor, the Board would be 
updated on a corrective action as well. 
 
Questions and comments ensued. 
 
Board Member Neubauer recommended an update also be provided to the Finance 
Committee related to the fiscal impact of excessive employee unused vacation time due to 
furloughs and the pandemic and how it could affect funding streams. 
 
This was an informational item. 



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

July 9, 2020  3 of 4 

4.  Milwaukee County Behavioral Health Division 2020 Budget Consideration. 
 
Matt Fortman, Fiscal Administrator, Department of Health and Human Services 
 
Mr. Fortman reiterated the Finance Committee unanimously recommended approval of the 
recommended budget with no amendments. 
 
MOTION BY: (Perez) Approve the Behavioral Health Division’s 2021   
   Recommended Budget.  10-0 
MOTION 2ND BY: (Davis) 
AYES:  Davis, Eilers, Forman, Lanier, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, Shrout,  
   Stevens, and Wesley – 10 
NOES:  0 
 

5.  Adjournment. 
 
MOTION BY: (Neubauer) Adjourn.  10-0 
MOTION 2ND BY: (Forman) 
AYES:  Davis, Eilers, Forman, Lanier, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, Shrout,  
   Stevens, and Wesley – 10 
NOES:  0 
 

 
ADDENDUM ITEM 

 

6. Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES) Fund Allocation. 
 
Matt Fortman, Fiscal Administrator, Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) 
Joseph Lamers, Budget Director, Department of Administrative Services 
 
Mr. Fortman explained the CARES funding is a $77 million relief package going before the 
County Board next week.  The Behavioral Health Division and DHHS staff have advocated 
heavily for use of these funds for various public health and behavioral health needs in the 
community.  The key item to point out to the Board is the $1.6 million for mental health 
services.  Most of it will go to support psychiatric services for uninsured individuals 
particularly, newly uninsured individuals who lost their jobs related to the pandemic.  We also 
have $15 million to support housing and homeless services and $7 million for small business 
grants to go to affected providers in BHD’s network.  There will be an application process for 
the small business funds. 
 
Questions and comments ensued. 
 
Mr. Lamers stated the County has received funding from the State and Federal government 
for the CARES Act with an allocation included for mental health services for individuals who 
are uninsured.  Programming also identified includes housing support, small business 
grants, and employment jobs programs related to the pandemic.  The COVID-19 Relief Fund 



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

July 9, 2020 4 of 4 

gives the County the opportunity to launch some new programs to benefit the community, 
which will cover the County’s new costs related to the pandemic. 

This was an informational item. 

This meeting was recorded.  The aforementioned agenda items were not necessarily considered 
in agenda order. The official copy of these minutes and subject reports, along with the audio 
recording of this meeting, is available on the Milwaukee County Behavioral Health Division/Mental 
Health Board web page. 

Length of meeting:  8:03 a.m. to 8:47 a.m. 

Adjourned, 

Jodi Mapp 

Jodi Mapp
Senior Executive Assistant 
Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

The next regular meeting for the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board is 
Thursday, August 27, 2020, @ 9:00 a.m. at 

a Location to be Determined 

Visit the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board Web Page at: 
https://county.milwaukee.gov/EN/DHHS/About/Governance 

The July 9, 2020, meeting minutes of the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board are 
hereby submitted for approval at the next scheduled regular meeting of the Milwaukee 
County Mental Health Board. 

Michael Davis, Secretary 
Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

https://county.milwaukee.gov/EN/DHHS/About/Governance


COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE 
INTER-OFFICE COMMUNICATION 

Date:  7/28/2020 

To: Tom Lutzow, Chairman, Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

From: Margo J. Franklin, Chief Human Resources Officer, Department of Human 
Resources 

RE:   Ratification of the 2020 Memorandum of Agreement between Milwaukee 
County and the Milwaukee Building & Construction Trades Council, AFL-
CIO 

Milwaukee County (the County) has reached an understanding with the bargaining team 
for the Milwaukee Building and Construction Trades Council, AFL-CIO (TRADES) that 
establishes a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) for 2020.   

I am requesting that this item be placed on the next agenda for the meeting of the 
Milwaukee County Mental Health Board.   

The following documents will be provided to the Committee for their review: 

1) The MOA between the County and the TRADES;

2) A notification from the TRADES that the MOA was ratified by the membership;

3) A fiscal note that has been prepared by the Office of the Comptroller.

If you have any questions, please call me at 278-4852. 

cc: David Crowley – County Executive 
Mary Jo Meyers – Chief of Staff, Office of the County Executive 
Scott Manske – Milwaukee County Comptroller 
Steve Cady – Director of Research and Policy, Office of the Comptroller 
Maggie Daun – Corporation Counsel 

4



2020 

AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE 

COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE 

AND THE 

MILWAUKEE BUILDING & CONSTRUCTION TRADES COUNCIL, AFL-CIO 

MILWAUKEE COUNTY 

DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RESOURCES 

EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 

COURTHOUSE, ROOM 210 

901 NORTH. 9TH STREET 

MILWAUKEE, WI  53233 

414-278-4852



This Page Intentionally Left Blank



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

SECTION PAGE 

PART 1 

1.01 Recognition  1 

1.02 Employee Defined  2 

1.03 Duration of Agreement 2 

PART 2 

2.01 Wages 2 

Appendix Milwaukee Building & Construction Trades 3 

Council, AFL-CIO Positions



1 

2020 1 

AGREEMENT 2 

between the 3 

COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE 4 

and the 5 

MILWAUKEE BUILDING & CONSTRUCTION TRADES COUNCIL, AFL-CIO 6 

7 
8 

This Agreement, made and entered into by and between the County of Milwaukee, a 9 

municipal body corporate, as municipal employer, hereinafter referred to as “County”, 10 

and the Milwaukee Building & Construction Trades Council, AFL-CIO, as 11 

representatives of employees who are employed by the County of Milwaukee, 12 

hereinafter referred to as “Council”.  The County is a party to this agreement by virtue of 13 

the power granted to the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board under Wis. Stat. 14 

51.41(10). 15 

16 

W I T N E S S E T H 17 

18 

In consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the parties hereto do hereby 19 

mutually agree as follows: 20 

21 

PART 1 22 

23 

1.01 RECOGNITION 24 

The County agrees to recognize, and herewith does recognize, the Council as the 25 

exclusive collective Bargaining agent of behalf of the employees of Milwaukee County in 26 

accordance with the certification of the Wisconsin Employment Relations Commission, 27 

as amended, in respect to wages, pursuant to Subchapter IV, Chapter 111.70, 28 

Wisconsin Statues. 29 

30 

31 



2 

1.02 EMPLOYEE DEFINED 1 

Whenever the term "employee" is used in this Agreement, it shall mean and include 2 

only those employees of the County within the certified bargaining unit represented by 3 

the Council as seen in the Appendix. 4 

5 

1.03 DURATION OF AGREEMENT 6 

This Agreement is to take effect on January 1, 2020. Unless otherwise modified or 7 

extended by mutual agreement of the parties, this Agreement shall expire on December 8 

31, 2020. 9 

10 

PART 2 11 

12 

2.01 WAGES 13 

Effective Pay Period 02, 2020 (December 29, 2019) the wages of bargaining unit 14 

employees shall be increased by one percent (1.0%). 15 



Appendix 

3 

Milwaukee Building & Construction Trades Council, AFL-CIO Positions 

Union Code High Org Low Org Position Description 

BT 6300 6532 Electrical Mech 

BT 6300 6532 Plumber 



SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS 



DB/MB/OPEIU #9/AFL-CIO 

July 7, 2020 

Margo J Franklin | Chief Human Resources Officer 

Milwaukee County Department of Human Resources 

901 N. 9th St., Suite 210, Milwaukee, WI 53233 

Dear Ms. Franklin, 

This letter is to inform you that our Milwaukee County members have met to discuss the 1% wage 

increase as proposed by Milwaukee County. Our membership has voted unanimously to accept it. We 

understand that this increase is retroactive to December 29, 2019 and respectfully request that it be 

expedited as quickly as possible to ensure that it appears on the upcoming agenda for the Milwaukee 

County Board of Supervisors’ meeting for approval.  

Sincerely, 

Daniel J. Bukiewicz 
President 



COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE 
INTEROFFICE COMMUNICATION 

DATE: July 28, 2020 

TO: Tom Lutzow, Chairman, Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

FROM: Scott B. Manske, Comptroller 
Cynthia (CJ) Pahl, Financial Services Manager, Office of the Comptroller 

SUBJECT: Fiscal Impact – 2020 Collective Bargaining Agreement with the Milwaukee Building & 
Construction Trades Council 

Under Wisconsin Employment Relations Commission (WERC) rules and Statue Statute, non-
public safety bargaining units are only allowed to negotiate for base wage increases on an annual 
basis.  The start of the bargaining year for the Milwaukee Building & Construction Trades Council 
(MBCTC), AFL-CIO, was January 1, 2020.  The last day of their previously negotiated contract was 
December 31, 2019.  The bargaining unit was recertified in 2020. 

2020 Base Wage Limit 

Using rules provided by WERC, a calculation was made to provide the maximum base wage 
increase allowable for 2020 for this bargaining unit.  The calculation was based on the members 
of the bargaining unit in the pay period that was 180 days prior to the expiration date of the most 
recent collective bargaining agreement.  The pay period used was Pay Period 15 2019 (ending 
July 13, 2019).  At that time, the bargaining unit had two members who were actively employed1.  
The annual wages of the members were calculated based upon their existing wage rates and 
were then multiplied by the CPI applicable to bargaining years beginning on January 1, 2020, or 
2.07 percent.  This became the maximum base wage increase allowable for purposes of 
bargaining or $3,056; this is the maximum amount that can be paid in additional base wages in 
2020 and can be paid out however agreed upon by the union and the County. 

2020 Wage Increase and Base Wage Compliance 

Based upon the proposed agreement with the bargaining unit, the base wage rates will increase 
by 1.0 percent effective with Pay Period 2 (beginning December 29, 2019) for all members.  The 
base wage increase results in a total salary lift for 2020 of $1,501 for the bargaining unit, which 
is $1,555 below the maximum base wage increase allowable.  Calculation of the maximum base 
wage increase for the bargaining unit was made in accordance with the WERC rules.  The Office 

1 For purposes of this fiscal note, the MBCTC bargaining unit consists of all represented employees only under 
control of the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board. 



Fiscal Note - 2020 Collective Bargaining Agreement with the Milwaukee Building & Construction Trades 
Council Page 2 

of the Comptroller and outside legal counsel have discussed and have agreed to the definition, 
application and calculation of base wages. 

Impact of 2020 Wage Increase on 2020 Budget and 2021 Budget 

Based upon the proposed agreement with the bargaining unit, the base wage rates will increase 
by 1.0 percent effective with Pay Period 2 (beginning December 29, 2019).  The cost of the wage 
increase for 2020, using the contract effective date, would be as follows: 

The 2020 Adopted Budget included appropriations for a 1.0 percent wage increase for all 
employees, effective Pay Period 22 (beginning December 29, 2019), or approximately $1,501 in 
additional salary dollars.  Therefore, there is no cost based on the proposed agreement for the 
current year.     

Since this wage increase inflates the base wage of these employees, it would therefore impact 
each subsequent year budget.  The budget impact on 2021, assuming the same pension 
percentages, would be as follows: 

Scott B. Manske 
Comptroller 

Cynthia (CJ) Pahl 
Financial Services Manager 

2 The Behavioral Health Division’s budget included an appropriation for a 1.0 percent wage increase for all 
employees, effective Pay Period 15, starting June 28, 2020.  Nondepartmental Org. 1972 includes additional funds 
to implement the 1.0 percent wage increase effective Pay Period 2, starting December 29, 2019. 

2020 Salary Increase 1,501$           

FICA 115$              

Net cost 1,616$           

2020 Budgeted Salary Increase 1,501$           

FICA 115$              

Net Amount Budgeted for Salary Increase 1,616$           

Net Actual Cost of Bargained 1% 1,616$           

Savings / (Cost) -$  

2021 Salary Increase 1,501$           

FICA 115$              

Net cost 1,616$           



COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE 
Behavioral Health Division Administration 

Inter-Office Communication  

DATE: August 14, 2020 

TO: Thomas Lutzow, Chairman – Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

FROM: Michael Lappen, Administrator, Behavioral Health Division 

SUBJECT: Report from the Administrator, Behavioral Health Division, Providing an 
Administrative Update 

Background 

The purpose of this standing report is to highlight key activities or issues related to the 
Milwaukee County Behavioral Health Division (BHD) since the previous Board meeting and 
provide ongoing perspectives to the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board regarding the 
work of the organization and its leadership. 

Discussion 

Optimal Operations and Administrative Efficiencies 

• Systems Improvement Agreement (SIA) Update

BHD ligature risk abatement construction is scheduled to begin September 7, 2020.  The

project will begin with two unoccupied spaces:  the side of the Child and Adolescent

Treatment Service (CAIS) unit where the classroom operates and on 43D, a licensed but

inactive unit.  Once these spaces are updated and deemed safe by our consultants, we

will begin relocating patients from active units until all the clinical spaces meet modern

safety guidelines.  This will be a very complex project, but it has been carefully planned

with the guidance of our expert consultants and in collaboration with County Facilities

Management.

As a protection against COVID-19 transmission, contractors performing the work will 
enter and exit the buildings through designated entrances on the units being repaired 
and will not have access to patients or staff.  We hope to have all the work completed 
by early 2021.  At a recent monthly meeting with our SIA team to review our monthly 
report on the Corrective Action Plan to the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services 
(CMS), the great majority of items were in green or yellow status.  The items in “red”  

6



Administrative Update 
08/14/2020 
Page 2 
 

 
Optimal Operations and Administrative Efficiencies (Contd.) 
 

status, indicating they were behind schedule, were discussed at length, and plans were 

put in place to accelerate the efforts to complete those items. 

• Complaint Survey 
 

On Tuesday August 11, 2020, BHD had an unannounced complaint survey by Wisconsin 
Department of Health Services surveyors operating under the direction of CMS.  They 
indicated they would also be surveying BHD for COVID-19 management.  The BHD Team 
provided all requested documentation and all relevant policies and procedures and 
facilitated the surveyors to interview staff and patients.  At exit at approximately 
3:45 p.m., the surveyors indicated they did not expect any citations to be issued but 
would be submitting their findings to CMS who makes the final decisions.  As an aside, 
the surveyors were complimentary about BHD’s COVID-19 response and indicated we 
were much more successful with patient mask compliance than other psychiatric 
hospitals they have surveyed.  They indicated they had no recommendations for 
improvement in that area. 
 

High Quality and Accountable Service Delivery 
 

• Universal Health Services (UHS) Update 
 

UHS is actively building their new hospital in West Allis.  The facility is on track to be 
completed by July 1, 2021, and will be named Granite Hills.  Representatives from UHS 
recently presented to the Milwaukee Mental Health Task Force sharing this information 
and also indicating they have already interviewed serval Chief Executive Officer (CEO) 
candidates and hope to have the local leadership team in place by the end of the year.  
A “last beam” ceremony was originally scheduled for September, but this has been 
postponed secondary to COVID-19 concerns and travel restrictions. 
 

• COVID-19 Update 
 

BHD continues to have many safeguards in place to keep patients and staff safe.  All 
clinical staff are screened daily, and we recently went live with an Abbott Rapid test 
supplied by the Milwaukee Health Department with a testing program operated by BHD 
medical staff to provide testing for high risk staff.  All patients are screened in a new 
screening area in the Psychiatric Crisis Services (PCS) Unit operating in the space 
formerly occupied by the Access Clinic.  To date, we have tested about 60 clients 
through a partnership with the City of Milwaukee Health Department laboratory with 5 
confirmed cases.  We are using one unit (43A) as a designated COVID-19 unit and are 



Administrative Update 
08/14/2020 
Page 3 
 

operating at a reduced census with single rooms and social distancing as much as 
possible. 

 
Other Topics of Interest 
 

• Kane Communications Update 
 

See Attachment A. 
 
 

 
_________________________    
Mike Lappen, Administrator 
Milwaukee County Behavioral Health Division 
Department of Health and Human Services 



Mental Health Board Report / August 2020 

Through the COVID-19 pandemic, Milwaukee County Behavioral Health Division continues to 
provide patient-centered and cost-effective behavioral health care for Milwaukee County residents. 
Over the past several months, Milwaukee County Behavioral Health Division and its community 
partners have expanded access to mental health services through telehealth and virtual capabilities. 
BHD employees continue to provide the highest quality care whether working on-site with patients 
or through virtual work from home settings.  

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT 
BHD Town Halls 
Virtual Town Halls hosted every other week by BHD Leadership have been highly attended, 
averaging 100-120 staff members joining the meeting via Microsoft Teams. After each Town Hall, all 
staff members are sent a recap email highlighting countywide and BHD-specific updates, staff 
submitted questions and a recording of the Town Hall. 

Quarterly Newsletter  
The Q3/Fall Newsletter will be sent out in September to nearly 1,300 BHD staff, Mental Health Board 
members, community partners and providers. The newsletter features updates from Mike Lappen 
and the following sections are included: Program Spotlight, Employee Spotlight, Schneider studies, 
top Town Hall questions and recent media coverage of BHD. 

PUBLIC RELATIONS 

National Nurses Day 
● Secured 8 different live segments with FOX6 for National Nurses Day,
● Secured donation from Pick N Save for National Nurses Day
● Coordinated the development of Heroes Work Here banners to hang at BHD
● Secured Sheriff's Department participation in National Nurses Day

Mental Health Awareness Month 
● Developed a communications plan for Mental Health Awareness Month
● Secured a media partnership with Spectrum News 1 for the COVID-19 Mental Health Series

for Mental Health Awareness Month

Page  1     kanecommgroup.com 

Attachment A

https://fox6now.com/2020/05/06/national-nurses-day-giving-back-to-those-that-give-so-much-every-day/


 

● Secured and prepped spokespeople for the COVID-19 Mental Health Series including: 
○ Dr. Kweku Ramel Smith - COVID-19 mental health stressors impacting communities 

of color. 
○ Dr. Sebastian Ssempijja, Ph.D. - COVID-19 challenges facing immigrants and mental 

health resources available. 
○ Carmen Pitre - Dealing with mental health stressors when home is not a safe place to 

be during COVID-19. 
○ Marietta Luster - Coping with COVID-19 mental health stressors for older adults and 

individuals with disabilities. 
○ Dr. Gunjan Khandpur - How to help your children manage their mental health during 

COVID-19. 
● Drafted a media advisory and social media flyers for Mental Health Awareness Month Owen’s 

Place Grab and Go events 
● Secured media coverage from FOX6 and TMJ4 

 
BIPOC Mental Health Awareness Month  

● Drafted and distributed the BIPOC Mental Health Awareness Month press release 
● Incorporated talking points into the County Executive’s COVID-19 press briefing related to 

BIPOC Mental Health Month 
 
CART Partnership Media Stories  

● Secured Milwaukee Police Department participation in CART media opportunities and 
facilitated calls with MPD and BHD regarding the story angle, approach and timeline 

● Coordinated FOX6 and CBS58 CART media opportunities  
 
Media Relations 

● Pitched experts for media segments about mental health trends during COVID-19 
● Fielded media inquiries related to various programs and community news related to mental 

health 
● Coordinated logistics for the Milwaukee Magazine June/July roundtable opportunity and 

secured a spokesperson 
● Developed an advertisement for the Milwaukee Magazine June/July edition  
● Coordinated Milwaukee Journal Sentinel crisis resources story and interview with Lauren 

Hubbard 
● Drafted and distributed a press release about recent grant awards totaling over $6.4 million 

dollars and secured media coverage from Urban Milwaukee and Milwaukee Courier 

NURSE RECRUITMENT CAMPAIGN 
As a part of the planning for the 2020 nurse recruitment campaign, Kane held input sessions with 
Linda Oczus, Amy Lorenz, Lauren Hubbard, Merry Otero and Peter German to determine key 
differentiators and benefits to highlight about working at BHD. 
 
SERIOUS MENTAL ILLNESS CAMPAIGN 

In May of 2020, the Wraparound Milwaukee Serious Mental Illness Campaign was re-launched to 
build awareness through a public education campaign that focuses on promoting the importance 
of early identification of Serious Mental Illness (SMI). The campaign targets 18-22 year old college 
students in Milwaukee County and their parents/guardians. The campaign consists of: 
 

 
Page  2     kanecommgroup.com    

https://spectrumnews1.com/wi/milwaukee/news/2020/05/04/mental-health-help-during-the-coronavirus-crisis
https://spectrumnews1.com/wi/milwaukee/news/2020/05/04/mental-health-help-during-the-coronavirus-crisis
https://spectrumnews1.com/wi/milwaukee/news/2020/05/05/mental-health-help-during-the-coronavirus-crisis--part-ii
https://spectrumnews1.com/wi/milwaukee/news/2020/05/05/mental-health-help-during-the-coronavirus-crisis--part-ii
https://spectrumnews1.com/wi/milwaukee/news/2020/05/07/mental-health-help-during-the-coronavirus-crisis--part-iii
https://spectrumnews1.com/wi/milwaukee/news/2020/05/07/mental-health-help-during-the-coronavirus-crisis--part-iii
https://spectrumnews1.com/wi/milwaukee/news/2020/05/07/mental-health-help-during-the-coronavirus-crisis--part-iv
https://spectrumnews1.com/wi/milwaukee/news/2020/05/07/mental-health-help-during-the-coronavirus-crisis--part-iv
https://spectrumnews1.com/wi/milwaukee/news/2020/05/08/mental-health-help-during-the-coronavirus-part-v
https://spectrumnews1.com/wi/milwaukee/news/2020/05/08/mental-health-help-during-the-coronavirus-part-v
http://archive.tveyes.com/18120/3192444-48335/b8b68bc1-38cc-4593-91b5-6ad377eb9f13/WITI_05-21-2020_01.31.58.mp4
http://archive.tveyes.com/18120/3192444-48335/d08fdbdf-4a36-4ad9-a2f8-91e0b65bb208/WTMJ_05-21-2020_05.06.16.mp4
https://www.fox6now.com/news/there-is-hope-mpd-crisis-response-teams-provide-mental-health-help-education
https://www.cbs58.com/news/mpd-offers-inside-look-at-mental-health-partnership-program
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Na-M4VfhxFN9UOIsn2HQq2p7krJTn0Dh/view?usp=sharing
https://urbanmilwaukee.com/2020/08/04/mke-county-mental-health-services-expanded-with-grants/
https://milwaukeecourieronline.com/index.php/2017/12/02/milwaukee-county-behavioral-health-division-receives-2-6-million-dollars-in-grants-to-help-those-affected-by-opioid-addiction/


 

● Digital Ads - plan, purchase, manage and report on a paid digital ad buy targeting 18-22 year 
olds. Ads included social media ads on Facebook and Instagram, geo-fencing and 
geo-retargeting digital banner ads for mobile devices and native display ads as well. 

● PR Outreach - A PR and community relations plan was developed to help focus the 
campaign further not only by raising awareness of Wraparound among college students and 
their parents but help cast a wider net that encompassed community leaders and 
influencers, potential partners and others.  

● Creative Development - develop campaign messaging and creative to be used on on an 
direct mail piece  

● Direct Mailer - develop, print and mail an SMI direct mail piece targeted to 120,750 
households in Milwaukee County with kids ages 10+. The message will be around the 
importance of general mental health as it relates to children and the pandemic. The direct 
mailer will be finalized in August and mailed out in September. 

 
Digital Ad Campaign Results - May - July 
The SMI campaign went live on 05/04. As of 07/31 it had produced the following results: 

● 1,251,603 digital impressions (Impressions = number of ads served to our target audience) 
● 6,790 clicks 
● .54% CTR (Click-Through Rate) - this was 7.75 times the national average CTR of .07 
● .55% engagement rate 
● 71 verified visits to the BHD campus 

○ Verified visits are individuals who are in our target audience, who were served a digital 
ad, and through GPS were tracked to the BHD campus where they then went on to 
visit the Wraparound website. - This is a high level of engagement. 

 

CLINICALLY HIGH-RISK - TRAINING VIDEOS 

In May of 2020, Wraparound Milwaukee became a Technical Assistance Network to other FEP 
programs across the nation and wanted to develop a series of videos to help with training and 
support the treatment of individuals experiencing FEP.  
 
The objective of this project was to plan, shoot and develop four training modules (about 8-12 
minutes in length) that cover a variety of FEP-related topics. Kane worked with the Wraparound 
Milwaukee team to determine a structure for the videos, develop a video outline, and draft questions 
to ask in the modules. In July, Kane successfully completed a whole video shoot and is currently in 
the process of post-production planning for August. 

MENTAL HEALTH BOARD  
Budget Survey  
In March 2020, the 2021 Mental Health Board Public Comment Survey launched to gain community 
members’ opinions and ideas on the 2021 Milwaukee County Behavioral Health Division Budget. The 
survey garnered a total of 29 responses and weekly result reports were produced for BHD.  
 
Facebook Recommendation  
There is public concern that information regarding the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 
meetings is not easily accessible to the public. A Facebook page dedicated to only posting meeting 
information can address these concerns by providing a space to announce meeting related content. 
This page would also show that the Mental Health Board is proactive in responding to the public. 
 

 
Page  3     kanecommgroup.com    



 

The purpose of the Facebook page is to spread information about Milwaukee County Mental Health 
Board meetings to their stakeholders. The content should be limited to meetings announcements, 
agendas and minutes. Pictures are not necessary besides the profile and cover images. 
 
The Facebook page should be used only for distributing information related to meetings so the 
public can be better informed. The Facebook page administrators should not engage stakeholders 
since the page only serves an informational, not a social or community purpose. Therefore, the 
page’s messaging inbox should be disabled. While comments cannot be disabled, they can be 
hidden or deleted. 
 
A full MHB Facebook page recommendation proposal has been shared with BHD Leadership. Next 
steps are pending due to board approval and ownership of page responsibilities.  
 

 
Page  4     kanecommgroup.com    

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1v_IdbTkZEw249PtMgHlclq5C1RIm7jt6ieTmRL_w9yc/edit?usp=sharing


 
 
 

 
 

 
MILWAUKEE COUNTY BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIVISION 

Mental Health Board Report - August 2020  
Psychiatric Crisis Redesign Community Engagement Project  
 

PROJECT GOALS 
The psychiatric crisis redesign community engagement project launched in January 2020 
with the following goals:  
 

● Educate the community and build awareness of the psychiatric crisis service redesign 
process and the programs and services BHD continues to offer. 

● Gather systems-level and specific element input from diverse key stakeholders at 
various points in the redesign process. 

● Keep the community informed about progress during the redesign process. 
 
The project was originally slated to run from January to June 2020. Due to COVID-19 
precautions, the project timeline was extended to September 2020.  
 

STRATEGY 
Adhering to COVID-19 safety orders and guidelines, the project strategy was updated to 
include virtual community conversations (CCs), one-on-one phone or Zoom interviews with 
questions about the impact of COVID-19 on behavioral health service delivery. Key 
components of the strategy are outlined below: 
 

● 90 to 120-minute, virtual community conversations 
The community conversations are structured as input sessions, for 15 to 20 participants, 
with targeted questions being asked by a trained facilitator who documents the 
anonymous responses of participants. The questions are tailored to fit each input 
group and were asked in rounds with each participant having two minutes to respond 
to each question. 
 
Participants start the session as a large group where they receive an overview of the 
psychiatric crisis redesign project from Mike Lappen, BHD Administrator, or a member 
of BHD’s leadership team. Participants are then broken into small groups of six to 
seven for intimate conversations. 
 
 

 

PERCEPTIVITY  |  A research division of Kane Communications Group 
250 E Wisconsin Ave., Suite 1200, Milwaukee, WI 53202 

 



 

● 60-minute one-on-one interviews with key stakeholders 
Utilizing the same questions from the community conversations, the one-on-one 
interviews are conducted via Zoom or phone and are an opportunity to collect 
additional feedback from key stakeholders. 
 

● Pre- and post-quantitative participant surveys for CCs and interview participants 
Pre- and post-quantitative surveys are administered to assess participants’ 
understanding of the psychiatric crisis redesign process. 
 

● Online stakeholder surveys 
Online surveys are conducted to get input from stakeholders who are not able to 
attend community conversations and/or one-on-one interviews. The survey questions 
are the same questions that are asked during the community conversations. 
 

● Report out tactics 
Designed to keep stakeholders informed about the findings of the project, report out 
tactics include a written summary report, video report, key stakeholder sessions, 
community-wide sessions and face-to-face meetings. Please note that sessions and 
meetings may be virtual. 
 

TARGET POPULATION 
The project targets key behavioral health stakeholders including BHD staff, law enforcement, 
mental health advocates, providers, consumers, families, community members and elected 
officials. 
 

PROGRESS TO DATE  
Community conversations were held with the stakeholders listed below. Additionally, 
stakeholders completed a quantitative pre- and post-community conversation survey to 
assess their confidence in psychiatric crisis services continuing, their understanding of the 
psychiatric crisis redesign process and their knowledge of psychiatric crisis services that are 
available to the community.  See the table below for community conversation details and 
participant insights. The participant insights are high-level quantitative data points from the 
pre- and post-surveys, qualitative themes and participant quotes from the community 
conversations and online surveys. Please note that comprehensive summary reports from 
each session are available. 
 

INPUT GROUP  LOGISTICS  PARTICIPANTS (99 total) 

BHD STAFF  In person 
February 20 
7:15 am & 1:45 pm 

7:15 am participants - 14 
1:45 pm participants - 8 
Online surveys - 11 

LAW ENFORCEMENT  In person 
March 5 
10:00 am 

Participants - 15  
Online surveys - 0 

 
 

 
 Page  2 

 
 

 
 



 

Mental Health Advocates  In person 
March 10 
3:00 pm 

Participants - 39 
Online surveys - 2 

Providers  Virtual 
June 30 
10:00 am 

Participants - 8 
Online surveys - 3 

Community Members   Virtual  
August 4  
6:00 pm  

Participants - 11 
Online surveys - 0  

 

ON THE HORIZON 
● Community conversations with consumers and families, elected officials and 

additional community members. 
● One-on-one interviews with key stakeholders including partners, consumers and 

families and community members. 
● Community-wide report out sessions to share the findings of the community 

conversations and how BHD will use stakeholder input to inform decisions about 
behavioral health service access and delivery. 

 
 

 
 Page  3 

 
 

 
 



COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE 

Behavioral Health Division Administration 

Inter-Office Communication  

DATE: August 11, 2020 

TO: Thomas Lutzow, Chairperson – Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

FROM: Shakita LaGrant, Interim Director, Department of Health and Human Services 

Approved by Michael Lappen, Administrator, Behavioral Health Division 

SUBJECT: Report from the Director, Department of Health and Human Services, 

Requesting Authorization to Execute Lease Agreement with Sixteenth Street 

Community Health Center  

Issue 

Partnerships with the local Community Health Centers are a critical part of BHD’s transition 

plan to increase access to services within the community and to improve behavioral health care 

services in all areas of Milwaukee County.  BHD is partnering with Sixteenth Street Community 

Health Center (SSCHC) to co-locate in a building newly obtained by SSCHC on the city’s south 

side.  BHD will create an Access Clinic at this location to support the outpatient psychiatry needs 

of community members and provide crisis stabilization services.  Additionally, BHD will 

relocate two community crisis service teams to this location:  Team Connect and Care 

Coordination. 

Background 

Approval of the recommended lease will allow BHD to provide a broad range of crisis 

stabilization services to adults with mental health and/or substance use disorders at this 

community-based location, thereby increasing access for individuals in need of services and 

increasing collaborative efforts with SSCHC.  Below are the highlights of the recommended 

lease: 

• 5-year term with one 5-year option to extend

• Approximately 5,483 rentable square feet

• Year 1 rent is $97,773 with 3% annual increases

• Capital costs of $400,166 for tenant improvements (excluding furniture and relocation

costs)

• Capitol costs have been rolled into the rent agreement with 0% interest on capital costs

• Rent is all-inclusive except for telecom and data, which will be provided by the County

• Projected move in date is the second week of February 2021

7



2 
 

Recommendation 

 

Requesting the Mental Health Board approval to enter into lease agreement with Sixteenth Street 

Community Health Center for co-location at 1635 W. National Avenue. 

 

 

 

 

       

Shakita LaGrant, Interim Director 

Department of Health and Human Services 

 

 

 

cc: Maria Perez, Finance Chairperson 



REVISED 
COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE 

Behavioral Health Division Administration 

Inter-Office Communication  

DATE: August 20, 2020 

TO: Thomas Lutzow, Chairperson – Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

FROM: Shakita LaGrant, Interim Director, Department of Health and Human Services 
Approved by Michael Lappen, Administrator, Behavioral Health Division 

SUBJECT: Report from the Interim Director, Department of Health and Human 

Services, Requesting Authorization to Execute 2020 Professional Services 

Contracts for Program Evaluation, Training, Pharmacy, Technology, and 

Public Relations/Communications Services 

Issue 

Wisconsin Statute 51.41(10) requires approval for any contract related to mental health 
(substance use disorder) with a value of at least $100,000.  No contract or contract adjustment 

shall take effect until approved by the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board.  Per the statute, 
the Director of the Department of Health and Human Services is requesting authorization for 
BHD/CARS/Wraparound/Inpatient Hospital to execute mental health and substance use 
contracts for 2020. 

Background 

Approval of the recommended contract allocations will allow BHD/CARS/Wraparound/Inpatient 

Hospital to provide a broad range of rehabilitation and support services to adults with mental 
health and/or substance use disorders and children with serious emotional disturbances. 

Professional Services Contracts 

Adult Services Contracts 

University of Wisconsin Milwaukee (UWM) - $339,484 

UWM, Center for Urban Population Health (CUPH) provides program evaluation for the newly 

awarded SAMHSA Assisted Outpatient Treatment (AOT) grant. The evaluators will focus on the 
process (what was done and how it was accomplished) and the outcomes (i.e. results) of the 
Milwaukee County AOT program that will be implementing an Assertive Community Treatment 
(ACT) model. BHD is requesting $339,484 for 2020. The four-year contract amount will be 

$339,484. 

Year New/Amendment Contract Amount 

2020 New $81,252 

2021 New $83,616 
2022 New $86,054 

2023 New $88,562 

8



2 
 

University of Minnesota Center for Practice Transformation - $259,250 

The University of Minnesota will provide various trainings to include training on the Assertive 
Community Treatment (ACT) model as part of the SAMHSA Assisted Outpatient Treatment 

(AOT) grant. These trainings will be provided to the AOT team members and additional CARS 
and Community Support Program (CSP) staff.  BHD is requesting $259,250 for 2020. The four-
year contract amount will be $259,250. 
 

Year New/Amendment Contract Amount 

2020 New $105,650 

2021 New $110,300 

2022 New $21,650 

2023 New  $21,650 

 
Hospital/Operations Contracts 

 

CareFusion, Inc.  - $123,432.48 

Pharmacy utilizes Pyxis for automated dispensing systems. Pyxis plays a critical role in the 
medication dispensing/administration process at BHD. Pyxis uses automated dispensing 
medication cabinets that is a critical piece of medication administration at BHD. Without the 
automated dispensing medication cabinets Pyxis provides there would be a large gap in the 

medication administration (closed loop) process that would compromise patient safety. This 
request is to continue to utilize Pyxis with CareFusion support. The addition of these funds will 
increase the contract amount to a total of $723,297.48. 
 

Netsmart Technologies, Inc. - $105,000 

Netsmart Technologies, Inc. provides support for BHD’s Electronic Health Record (E.H.R.) 
system “myAvatar”. BHD is requesting $25,000 to be added to Netsmart’s contract to provide 
training services to further educate staff on how to properly navigate the E.H.R. The training is 

required in order to improve staff’s ability to navigate Avatar to determine the degree and 
intensity of treatment provided as to assist in safe care and treatment.  BHD is obligated to 
implement the Service Improvement Agreement (SIA) Corrective Action Plans (CAP) before the 
deadline to meet the regulatory Medicare and Medicaid Conditions of Participation.  BHD is also 

requesting an additional $80,000 earmarked for use with technology and training services as is 
needed in support of additional SIA requirements related to the EHR.  The total request of 
105,000 is in addition to the previously approved, projected and utilized Central Spend 
budget.  The addition of these funds will increase the contract amount to $3,961,758.00.  

 
Youth Services Contracts 

 
Kane Communications Group - $37,600 

BHDS is requesting funds for Kane Communications Group to build awareness and drive 
audiences to seek services and focus on promoting the resources and services available for 
Serious Mental Illness (SMI) through Wraparound Milwaukee. The additional $37,600 for 2020 
is being requested to complete a targeted direct mailer for SMI awareness that will reach 

approximately 120,750 households in Milwaukee County with kids ages 10 and up. The nine-
month contract amount will be $173,932. 



3 
 

 
 
 Fiscal Summary 

 

The amount of spending requested in this report is summarized below.  
 

Vendor Name 

Existing 

Amount/New 

2020 
Amount 

Requested 

2021 
Amount 

Requested 

2022 
Amount 

Requested 

2023 
Amount 

Requested 

Total 
Contract 

Amount 
*University of 

Minnesota 
Center for 
Practice 
Transformation New $105,650 $110,300 $21,650 $21,650 $259,250 

*University of 

Wisconsin 
Milwaukee New $81,252 $83,616 $86,054 $88,562 $339,484 

CareFusion, 
Inc. $599,865 $123,432.48 $0 $0 $0 $723,297.48 

Netsmart 
Technologies, 
Inc. $3,856,758 $105,000 N/A N/A N/A $3,961,758 

*Kane 
Communication 

Group $136,332 $37,600 N/A N/A N/A $173,932 

TOTAL $4,592,955 $415,334.48 $193,916 $107,704 $110,212 $5,457,721.48 
 

*Denotes a Vendor whose funding is supported by a grant. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
       

Shakita LaGrant, Interim Director 
Department of Health and Human Services 
 
cc: Maria Perez, Finance Chairperson 



COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE 

Behavioral Health Division Administration 

Inter-Office Communication  

DATE: August 11, 2020 

TO: Thomas Lutzow, Chairperson – Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

FROM: Shakita LaGrant, Interim Director, Department of Health and Human Services 

Approved by Michael Lappen, Administrator, Behavioral Health Division 

SUBJECT: Report from the Director, Department of Health and Human Services, 

Requesting Authorization to Execute 2020 Purchase-of-Service Contract 

Amendments with a Value in Excess of $100,000 for the Behavioral Health 

Division for the Provision of Adult and Child Mental Health Services and 

Substance Use Disorder Services 

Issue 

Wisconsin Statute 51.41(10) requires approval for any contract related to mental health 

(substance use disorder) with a value of at least $100,000.  No contract or contract adjustment 

shall take effect until approved by the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board.  Per the statute, 

the Director of the Department of Health and Human Services is requesting authorization for 

BHD/CARS/Wraparound/Inpatient Hospital to execute mental health and substance use 

contracts for 2020 

Background 

Approval of the recommended contract allocations will allow BHD/CARS/Wraparound/Inpatient 

Hospital to provide a broad range of rehabilitation and support services to adults with mental 

health and/or substance use disorders and children with serious emotional disturbances. 

Purchase-of-Service Contracts 

Adult Service Contracts 

Impact Alcohol & Other Drug Abuse Services, Inc. - $7,500 

The Vendor provides additional case management services for the Intoxicated Driver Program 

(IDP), which is a service provided on behalf of Milwaukee County to implement and manage the 

Intoxicated Driver Program. BHD is requesting $7,500 to cover the cost of the position and 

services provided for the remainder of the 2020 contract year. The one-year total contract 

amount for 2020 will be $382,500. 

Youth Services Contracts 

Wisconsin Community Services, Inc. - $707,037 

9



2 

Wisconsin Community Services, Inc. (WCS) will manage/operate the Youth Crisis Stabilization 

Facility.  Identified as a high need county having a high rate of youth admitted, and readmitted, 

to psychiatric emergency rooms, inpatient services, and local hospitals, the project proposes to 

develop, implement, and operate a youth crisis stabilization facility (YCSF) in partnership with 

WCS.  The treatment facility will have a maximum of 6 beds that will admit Milwaukee County 

male youth and young adults ages 13-17 to prevent, deescalate, and treat mental health crisis and 

avoid admission to a more restrictive setting.  The YCSF will provide mental health crisis 

support for the target population 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, 365 days per year.  For the 

purpose of this grant, the YCSF will serve two distinct populations of male youth and young 

adults, ages 13-17, who will be assessed for short-term residential treatment as a clinically 

appropriate treatment option: (1) youth accessing crisis services through Psychiatric Crisis 

Services (PCS), and (2) youth transitioning out of the Child and Adolescent Inpatient Services 

(CAIS) for step-down crisis care prior to the youth’s return to their family. A secondary target 

population are male youth and young adults, ages 13-17, who are currently in Out-of-Home Care 

placements and determined to be in need of crisis respite.  This contract/request is not a result of 

a competitive bid process, but a single source award to WCS.  Due to the need to expedite the 

Youth Crisis Facility, WCS familiarity with the crisis stabilization services/population of youth 

served, and in the interest of continuity and efficiencies the team would bring, Wraparound feels 

the use of WCS to provide the service would minimize potential delays in meeting the 

established deadlines and awarded them the contract. BHD is requesting an additional $707,037 

for the 2020 contract. The one-year contract amount will be increased to $2,047,177.  

Wisconsin Community Services, Inc. - $578,737 

Wisconsin Community Services, Inc. (WCS) will manage/operate the Youth Crisis Stabilization 

Facility.  Identified as a high need county having a high rate of youth admitted, and readmitted, 

to psychiatric emergency rooms, inpatient services, and local hospitals, the project proposes to 

develop, implement, and operate a youth crisis stabilization facility (YCSF) in partnership with 

WCS.  The treatment facility will have a maximum of 6 beds that will admit Milwaukee County 

male youth and young adults ages 13-17 to prevent, deescalate, and treat mental health crisis and 

avoid admission to a more restrictive setting.  The YCSF will provide mental health crisis 

support for the target population 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, 365 days per year.  For the 

purpose of this grant, the YCSF will serve two distinct populations of male youth and young 

adults, ages 13-17, who will be assessed for short-term residential treatment as a clinically 

appropriate treatment option: (1) youth accessing crisis services through Psychiatric Crisis 

Services (PCS), and (2) youth transitioning out of the Child and Adolescent Inpatient Services 

(CAIS) for step-down crisis care prior to the youth’s return to their family. A secondary target 

population are male youth and young adults, ages 13-17, who are currently in Out-of-Home Care 

placements and determined to be in need of crisis respite.  This contract/request is not a result of 

a competitive bid process, but a single source award to WCS.  Due to the need to expedite the 

Youth Crisis Facility, WCS familiarity with the crisis stabilization services/population of youth 

served, and in the interest of continuity and efficiencies the team would bring, Wraparound feels 

the use of WCS to provide the service would minimize potential delays in meeting the 

established deadlines and awarded them the contract. BHD is requesting an additional $578,737 

for the 2020 contract. The one-year contract amount will be $578,737.  



3 

Fiscal Summary 

The amount of spending requested in this report is summarized below. 

Vendor Name 
Existing 

Amount/New 

2020 

Amount 

Requested 

2023 

Amount 

Requested 

2024 

Amount 

Requested 

Total 

Contract 

Amount 

2021 

Amount 

Requested 

2022 

Amount 

Requested 

*Impact Alcohol & Other Drug

Abuse Services, Inc. 
$375,000 $7,500 N/A N/A N/A N/A $382,500 

*Wisconsin Community Services,

Inc. 
$1,340,140 $707,037 N/A N/A N/A N/A $2,047,177 

*Wisconsin Community Services,

Inc. 
New $578,737 N/A N/A N/A N/A $578,737 

$1,715,140 $1,293,274 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,008,414 

*Denotes a Vendor whose funding is supported by a grant.

Shakita LaGrant, Interim Director 

Department of Health and Human Services 

cc: Maria Perez, Finance Chairperson 



COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE 

Behavioral Health Division Administration 

Inter-Office Communication  

DATE: August 11, 2020 

TO: Thomas Lutzow, Chairperson – Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

FROM: Shakita LaGrant, Interim Director, Department of Health and Human Services 

Approved by Michael Lappen, Administrator, Behavioral Health Division 

SUBJECT: Report from the Director, Department of Health and Human Services, 

Requesting Authorization to Execute 2020 Fee-for-Service Agreement 

Amendments with a Value in Excess of $100,000 for the Behavioral Health 

Division for the Provision of Adult and Child Mental Health Services and 

Substance Use Disorder Services 

Issue 

Wisconsin Statute 51.41(10) requires approval for any contract related to mental health 

(substance use disorder) with a value of at least $100,000.  No contract or contract adjustment 

shall take effect until approved by the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board.  Per the statute, 

the Director of the Department of Health and Human Services is requesting authorization for 

BHD/CARS/Wraparound/Inpatient Hospital to execute mental health and substance use 

contracts for 2020. 

Background 

Approval of the recommended contract allocation projections will allow 

BHD/CARS/Wraparound/Inpatient Hospital to provide a broad range of rehabilitation and 

support services to adults with mental health and/or substance use disorders and children with 

serious emotional disturbances. 

Fee-for-Service Agreements 

Adult Service Contracts 

Goodwill Industries of Southeastern Wisconsin, Inc. - $20,000 

The Vendor provides Individual Placement and Support (IPS) employment services for CARS 

consumers in various case management and care coordination services. BHD is requesting an 

additional $20,000 for 2020. The one-year total contract amount for 2020 will be $599,000. 

Fiscal Summary 

The amount of spending requested in this report is summarized below. 

10



2 
 

Vendor Name 

Existing 

Amount/New 

 

 

 

2020 Amount 

Requested 

Total 2020 

Contract Amount 

Goodwill Industries 

of Southeastern 

Wisconsin, Inc. $579,000 $20,000 $599,000 

 $579,000 $20,000 $599,000 

*Denotes a Vendors whose funding is supported by a grant 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

       

Shakita LaGrant, Interim Director 

Department of Health and Human Services 

 

Cc: Maria Perez, Finance Chairperson 



COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE 
Behavioral Health Division Administration 

Inter-Office Communication  

DATE: August 13, 2020 

TO: Thomas Lutzow, Chairperson – Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

FROM: Shakita LaGrant, Interim Director, Department of Health and Human Services 

Approved by Michael Lappen, Administrator, Behavioral Health Division 

SUBJECT: Report from the Director, Department of Health and Human Services, 

Requesting Authorization to Fund the Start Up of a Milwaukee County 

Sheriff’s Office Crisis Assessment and Response Team 

Issue 

During a recent discussion with Ted Chisolm, Chief of Staff for the Milwaukee County Sherriff’s 
Office (MCSO), Mr. Chisolm expressed interest in moving forward with a MCSO/Behavioral 
Health Division (BHD) Crisis Assessment and Response Team (CART).  He indicated we would 
work to implement a team beginning Fall of 2020, with the goal to have 5 MCSO Deputies 
assigned to CART by 2022.  The team would provide round-the-clock CART coverage to all of 
Milwaukee County.  This exciting development would achieve one of the major 
recommendations from the 2019 Public Policy Forum/Human Services Research Institute (HSRI) 
study of the BHD crisis continuum to expand CART significantly. 

Background 

There are many opportunities for this new team to make a significant impact in our community. 
We anticipate an expanded role as we move away from the BHD operated hospital and 
Psychiatric Crisis Service (PCS) and into a future with expanded community-based options 
designed to address mental health and substance use disorder needs “upstream.”  CART teams 
have been very successful at diverting people in crisis who have police contact from both the 
criminal justice system and from involuntary hospitalization.  With our Milwaukee Police 
Department CART teams, the data shows that about 80% of the time a CART team responds to 
a call, the outcome is something other than an arrest or an Emergency Detention.  Since the 
BHD clinician has access to our electronic health record and knows what options are available, 
the CART teams are often able to reconnect people to services like Community Support 
Programs (CSP), Targeted Case Management (TCM), crisis case management, or to make the 
first connection to the services they need that address the challenges that were the root causes 
precipitating the crisis contact. 

11



2 
 

Recommendation 
 
BHD projects about $7.2 million in additional funding to be available for expansion of our crisis 
continuum once the current BHD Acute Hospital and PCS close.  We project the closure to occur 
in early 2022.  Some of these funds will be used for a new service to replace the current PCS to 
make sure BHD continues to meet its statutory responsibilities to provide a receiving facility 
and to complete a Treatment Director’s Supplement for individuals under Emergency Detention 
under Chapter 51.  The balance of the funds will be invested in community-based and 
preventative services recommended by HSRI/TAC starting in 2022.  This funding, supplemented 
by DHS 34 crisis revenue, will provide sustainable funding for this CART expansion with MCSO.  
We believe that it is prudent to move forward as soon as possible with this initiative to make 
sure that the teams are up and running at full strength by 2022.  We therefore ask the Mental 
Health Board today to support funding this CART expansion with $500,000.00 in BHD reserves. 
 
Fiscal Summary 
 
The funding would support the first three MCSO deputies and two additional BHD clinicians.  
There already was one clinician budgeted in anticipation of a new CART team.  We estimate 
that this funding should allow the service to grow through 2021 and will support it until the 
sustainable funds are available.  As we have done with other partnerships with law 
enforcement, BHD would fund the officers at first.  By the 2022 budget, MCSO would budget for 
a share of the costs for this CART expansion.  If the expansion moves faster than expected and if 
we can recruit, hire, and train enough staff to achieve five active teams; we may need to come 
back for additional funding to bridge the program until 2022.  The BHD Community Crisis team 
feels that the request for $500,000.00 will adequately fund this well into 2021, and thus we 
want to limit our request from BHD reserves. 
 
 
 
 
 
       
Shakita LaGrant, Interim Director 
Department of Health and Human Services 
 
cc:  Maria Perez, Chairperson 
       Mental Health Board Finance Committee 



- 1 -

By Supervisor Moore Omokunde File No. 20-287 1 

2 

3 

A RESOLUTION 4 

5 

to modify the policy of the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) and other 6 

Departments  to adopt the Wisconsin Caregiver Law for barrable offenses  as part of the 7 

background check process for contract agency employees who provide direct care and 8 

services to youth, adhere to  the State of Wisconsin Rehabilitation appeals review 9 

process, retain the County’s policy to recognize Wisconsin Chapter 948 Crimes Against 10 

Children as a barrable offense (for those offenses not already barred by the State 11 

Caregiver Law) and urge the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board which oversees 12 

the DHHS-Behavioral Health Division to adopt this policy 13 

14 

15 

WHEREAS, many  Milwaukee County Department of Health and Human 16 

Services (DHHS)employees and   vendors  serve as caregivers for families and youth in 17 

Milwaukee County; and 18 

19 

WHEREAS, a caregiver is defined by the Wisconsin Caregiver Law as a person 20 

who is employed by, under contract, or a volunteer that has direct contact with clients, 21 

client’s personal property or client information that is planned, scheduled or expected or 22 

periodic; and 23 

24 

WHEREAS, in April 1999, the Milwaukee County Board of Supervisors adopted 25 

File No. 99-233, a resolution that among other things, requires all County departments 26 

that contract for youth services and programs to complete background checks on those 27 

individuals providing services, to ensure they are not involved in criminal and  gang 28 

activity,  and designated certain offenses, including Chapter 948 of the Wisconsin 29 

Statutes – Crimes Against Children as barrable offenses, and two (2) or more 30 

misdemeanors involving separate incidences within the last three (3) years; and 31 

32 

WHEREAS, in May 2000, the Milwaukee County Board of Supervisors amended 33 

File No. 99-233 to separate and bar individuals for five (5) years who have committed 34 

crimes in violation of the Uniform Controlled Substances Act under Chapter 961 35 

Wisconsin State Statutes, excluding simple possession, from those who have 36 

committed crimes against another individual(s) causing bodily harm or death who are 37 

permanently barred; and 38 

12



 

 
 - 2 - 

WHEREAS, DHHS contracts with many vendors which employ individuals who 39 

provide direct care and services to youth and families in Milwaukee County that 40 

positively impact youth and their families; and 41 

 42 
WHEREAS, under the current background check policy automatic barrable 43 

offenses, with no rehabilitation appeal process, may prevent individuals from sharing 44 

relatable personal experiences that positively influence the attitudes and behaviors of 45 

at-risk youth and prevent those individuals from working with families in the county; and 46 

 47 

WHEREAS, the State of Wisconsin Department of Health Services 48 

Administrative Code, Chapter 12 – Caregiver Background Checks, allows for the 49 

Substantially Related Test to be utilized to allow convictions, such as for Domestic 50 

Violence, to be reviewed to determine if it should disqualify the individual for the position 51 

they hold; and 52 

 53 

WHEREAS, the State of Wisconsin under Wis. Stat. § 50.065(5c) permits an 54 

individual who has failed to demonstrate to the Wisconsin Department of Health 55 

Services that he or she has been rehabilitated has the right to appeal to the Secretary of 56 

Health Services and request a judicial case review; and 57 

 58 

WHEREAS, the State of Wisconsin outlines the required criteria that an individual 59 

must adhere to and submit to the department in Wis. Stat. § 50.065(5d); and 60 

 61 

WHEREAS, the State agency has 90 days to review the rehabilitation plan upon 62 

receipt, and unless disapproved by the department, the plan is considered approved; 63 

and 64 

 65 

WHEREAS, under the current policy Milwaukee County does not have 66 

rehabilitation review appeals process which would allow an individual convicted of a 67 

barred offense the opportunity to provide convincing evidence that he or she has been 68 

rehabilitated, even if the State has already granted a rehabilitation review request under 69 

the Caregiver Law guidelines; and  70 

 71 

WHEREAS, any individual who has been barred from working with youth under 72 

the Wisconsin Caregiver Law shall be granted the opportunity to prove to the State and 73 

the County that he or she has been rehabilitated, as individuals with prior convictions 74 

often have relevant experience(s) which youth may relate to, will help strengthen 75 

communities impacted by mass incarceration; now, therefore, 76 

 



 

 
 - 3 - 

BE IT RESOLVED, the Milwaukee County Board of Supervisors hereby adopts a 77 

policy to amend the background check process for the Milwaukee County Department 78 

of Health and Human Services (DHHS) and other departments that provide services to 79 

youth directly or through contract vendors services, to adopt the barrable offenses 80 

outlined in the Wisconsin Caregiver Law and to accept the rehabilitation of any 81 

individual as determined by the State of Wisconsin’s appeal process under Wis. Stat. § 82 

50.065; and 83 

 84 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Milwaukee County shall maintain Chapter 85 

948 Crimes Against Children as barrable offenses, whether also barred by the 86 

Wisconsin Caregiver Law or not, as part of the background check process for contract 87 

agency employees who provide direct care to youth, a copy of which is hereto attached 88 

to this file; and  89 

 90 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Milwaukee County shall also follow the State 91 

of Wisconsin Department of Health Services Administrative Code, Chapter 12 – 92 

Caregiver Background Checks, for any criminal convictions using the Substantially 93 

Related Test to provide greater uniformity and understanding by vendors; and 94 

 95 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Department of Health and Human 96 

Services is requested to collaborate with the Office of Corporation Counsel to modify 97 

the current background check process to comport with the direction provided in this 98 

resolution for implementation as soon as practicable; and 99 

 100 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Department of Health and Human Services is 101 

requested to provide an informational report to the County Board on the status of this 102 

reform as soon as practical and is requested to submit the new policy to the Milwaukee 103 

County Mental Health Board for consideration and possible adoption to ensure a 104 

uniform policy that comports with the State Caregiver Law and appeal process except 105 

for those Chapter 948 offenses barred only by the County.  106 



 
Milwaukee County 

Department of Health & Human 
Services 

 

Date Issued: 
 

October 23 
2014 

 

Reviewed:  
By:  DHHS  

Contract Admin 
 

 
Section: 
 

ADMINISTRATION 

 
Policy No: 
 

DHHS 
001 

 
Pages: 
 

1 of 5 
(5 Attachments) 

 
 Behavioral Health Division (BHD) 
 Housing Division (Housing) 
 Disabilities Services Division 

(DSD) 
 Division of Youth & Family 

Services (DYFS) 
 Management Services Division 

(MSD) 

 

 
Effective Date: 
 
October 23, 2014 

 
Revise Date: 
 

June 30, 2020 
 

 
Subject: 
 

CAREGIVER BACKGROUND CHECKS / AMENDED 
MILWAUKEE COUNTY RESOLUTION 

 
I. POLICY 
 

It is the policy of Milwaukee County Department of Health & Human Services (DHHS) that a Caregiver Background Check (CBC) 
be completed on all applicable caregivers/staff/employees/volunteers/interns, as defined within this policy.  This policy applies to all 
DHHS contractors or service providers having reimbursable or non-reimbursable agreements including agencies/organizations with 
which DHHS has Purchase of Service contract(s), Fee-for-Service Agreement(s), Professional Service Agreement(s), Procurement 
or Price Agreement(s) or Memorandum(a) of Understanding.  The results of the CBC must meet the requirements as stated under 
Wisconsin Caregiver Law (see Attachment 1 – Chapter DHS 12 Caregiver Background Checks and the amended Milwaukee 
County Caregiver Resolution, File No. 20-287 (see Attachment 2)).  
 
OTHER POLICY REFERENCES (includes Add-Delete procedure, and CBC submission protocol) 
 
*Providers of DYFS, DSD, Housing, and MSD – refer to “Staff Roster and Add-Delete Procedure, Policy No. 800-004” 
https://county.milwaukee.gov/EN/DHHS/Provider-Portal 

 
BHD:  
*Providers of CARS – refer to “Contracted Agency Staff Add-Drop Procedure” 
http://milwaukeebhd.policystat.com/?lt=qhaRCXS6xPmzmujl7g3RdN 

 
*Providers of Wraparound Milwaukee – refer to “Provider Add, Drop and Record Maintenance, Policy No. 035” 
http://wraparoundmke.com/wp-content/uploads/2013/07/Provider-Add-Drop-and-Record-Maintenance.pdf) and  
“PROVIDER AGENCY RESPONSIBILITIES / GUIDELINES, Policy No. 054” 
http://wraparoundmke.com/wp-content/uploads/2013/07/054-Provider-Agency-Responsiblities-Guidelines.pdf 

 
II. DEFINITIONS 
 
 A. Caregiver/Employee/Volunteer – a person who meets all of the following: 

1. Is employed by, under contract with an entity, volunteer or intern. 
2. Has regular, direct contact with or access to the entity’s clients, their personal property, or client information. 
3. Is under the entity’s control. 

 
A Caregiver is also a person who is one of the following: 
1. The owner or administrator of an entity, whether or not they have regular, direct contact with clients. 
2. A board member or corporate office that has regular, direct contact with clients. 

 

B. Regular Contact –contact that is planned, scheduled, expected or periodic. 
 
C. Direct Contact –face-to-face proximity to a client that affords the opportunity to commit abuse or neglect of a client or 

misappropriation of a client’s property. 
 

http://milwaukeebhd.policystat.com/?lt=qhaRCXS6xPmzmujl7g3RdN
http://wraparoundmke.com/wp-content/uploads/2013/07/Provider-Add-Drop-and-Record-Maintenance.pdf
http://wraparoundmke.com/wp-content/uploads/2013/07/054-Provider-Agency-Responsiblities-Guidelines.pdf


DHHS 
Caregiver Background Checks Policy 
Page 2 of 5 
 
 

II. DEFINITIONS (cont’d) 
 

D.  Under the Entity’s Control –a person employed by or under contract with the entity for whom the entity does both of the 
following: 
1. Determines whether a person employed by or under contract with the entity that has access to clients may provide 

care, treatment or other similar support service functions to clients being served by the entity. 
2. Directs or oversees one or more of the following: 

a) The policy or procedures the person must follow in performing his or her duties as a caregiver/employee. 
b) The conditions under which the person performs his or her duties. 
c) The tasks performed by the person. 
d) The person’s work schedule. 
e) The supervision or evaluation of the person’s work or job performance, including imposing discipline or awarding 

performance awards. 
f) The compensation the person may receive for performing his or her duties as a caregiver/employee. 

 
E.  “Provider” – an agency, organization or individual with whom a DHHS contract, agreement or Memoranda of 

Understanding has been executed. 
 
F. “Direct Service Provider” (DSP) – Provider employee, volunteer, paid or unpaid intern, Independent Service Provider or 

subcontractor, who provides direct care and/or Covered Services to a Participant/Service Recipient on behalf of a 
Provider, for which the Provider receives compensation from the Purchaser under the agreement. 

 
G. “Indirect Staff”- is an employee, individual independent contractor or subcontractor who is not a DSP, but is associated 

with Covered Services as a supervisor, billing staff, case records and/or quality assurance worker, and/or is someone 
(i.e.: volunteer) who has access to clients, client property, and/or client information of Service Recipients.  Agency owner, 
President, CEO, Executive Director, and/or Senior Staff are considered Indirect Staff if reporting to work at a site where 
Covered Services are provided. 

 
III. PROCEDURE  

 
A. Prior to the provision of service, a CBC must be completed on all DSP and Indirect Staff as required by the State of 

Wisconsin Caregiver Law. 
 

 B. A complete CBC consists of the three following required documents: 
 

1. A completed Background Information Disclosure (BID) form (must use current DHS BID F-82064 
https://www.dhs.wisconsin.gov/library/F-82064.htm). The initial BID must be dated no more than 90 days prior to the 
start of service. All BID’s (typed or handwritten) must contain a handwritten signature of the applicant.  An electronic 
signature system date stamped is acceptable per required guidelines mentioned elsewhere in the contract.   

2. A response from the Department of Justice (DOJ) Wisconsin Criminal History Record Request consisting of either a 
“no record found” response or a criminal record transcript (see Attachment 4 – Sample DOJ). 

3. A response letter (Caregiver Background Check) from the Department of Health Services (DHS) that reports the 
person’s status, including administrative finding or licensing restrictions (see Attachment 5 – Sample DHS Letter). 

4. Optional: Conviction records through the Wisconsin Circuit Court Access (WCCA) system, formerly known as 
CCAP, online at http://wcca.wicourts.gov and may consider convictions found through WCCA which may or may not 
appear through the Wisconsin Criminal History Records Request process (the DOJ report).  

 

C. If providing direct care and services to children and/or youth, qualified agency personnel are responsible for closely 
examining the results of the Caregiver Background Checks for criminal convictions or findings of misconduct by a 
governmental agency; and to make employment decisions in accordance with the requirements and prohibitions in the 
law and in the AMENDED MILWAUKEE COUNTY CAREGIVER RESOLUTION. 

https://www.dhs.wisconsin.gov/library/F-82064.htm)


DHHS 
Caregiver Background Checks Policy 
Page 3 of 5 
 

 
III. PROCEDURE (cont’d) 
 

D. All copies of ALL Background Check information must be kept in the DSP or Indirect Staff’s personnel file or other file 
for the most recent five-year period, for the express purpose of retaining all required CBC information. 

 
E. Agency shall have a written policy that is communicated to all DSP’s and Indirect Staff upon hire, and annually 

thereafter, requiring immediate (within 24 hours of the event) notification to Agency of any new arrests, charges, or 
convictions.  Communication of this policy shall be documented with the employee’s signature and kept in the employee 
file.  Upon notification from caregiver/employee/volunteer/intern to Agency as described above, Agency shall notify 
respective Network (BHD - bhdproviders@milwaukeecountywi.gov or DHHS dhhscbc@milwaukeecountywi.gov) within 
one (1) business day.   

 
F. RESPECTIVE NETWORK or DHHS may also request from provider or obtain conviction records through the Wisconsin 

Circuit Court Access (WCCA) system, formerly known as CCAP, online at: http://wcca.wicourts.gov, and may consider 
convictions found through WCCA which may or may not appear through the Wisconsin Criminal History Records Request 
process (the DOJ report).  

 
IV. REQUIREMENTS 
 

A. Within 90 days prior to the provision of services, agencies shall conduct Background Checks at their own expense on all 
applicable staff/DSP’s/Indirect Staff.  Background Checks conducted at other agencies where individual may have been 
employed/volunteered are NOT transferrable to the new potential employer. 

 
B. After the initial Background Check, Providers are required to conduct a new Background Check every four years (every 

four years means to the date of the last Background Check – i.e., if a Background Check was completed on 1/16/10, the 
next Check must be completed prior to or on the date of 1/16/14), OR at any time within that period when Agencies have 
reason to believe that a new check should be obtained, or as often as is necessary to ensure that Individual Direct 
Service Providers and/or Indirect Staff have suitable backgrounds and are free of any barred convictions at all times that 
services are delivered.  

 
C.  Agencies must obtain a Background Check from the previous State of residence if any prospective staff has been living in 

the State of Wisconsin for less than three (3) years either by obtaining the record from the other state, National Check or 
by obtaining a FBI fingerprint check.   
 
Note: out-of-state checks are not available from all states – some are considered “closed” states.  In these cases, FBI 
check must be obtained.  National Criminal Search may be substituted for FBI check (“open” states only).  Details for 
obtaining an FBI fingerprint check can be found at http://www.doj.state.wi.us/dles/cib/cib-forms. 

 
D. A Background Check (all 3 parts) of a potential new staff that reveals any criminal history, regardless of the 

disposition or any finding of licensure restriction, denial or revocation, must be sent to the respective Network or 
DHHS with the Add Request Form before that individual will be approved to provide services or have indirect 
contact with clients. 

 
E. If a disposition of a criminal charge is not given (other than “pending” or “open”), the disposition must be obtained by the 

Provider by contacting the Milwaukee County Clerk of Courts ~ fax: (414) 454-4074.  If an “open or pending” charge 
would affect staff’s ability to enter the Network or DHHS will suspend consideration until resolution of the charge. Once 
the disposition is final, it is the responsibility of the agency to provide the Network or DHHS with the final disposition (if 
agency still considering New Hire). 

 
 
 

mailto:dhhscbc@milwaukeecountywi.gov
http://wcca.wicourts.gov/


DHHS 
Caregiver Background Checks Policy 
Page 4 of 5 
 
IV. REQUIREMENTS (cont’d) 
 

F. Agencies must notify the RESPECTIVE NETWORK (BHD - bhdproviders@milwaukeecountywi.gov) or DHHS 
dhhscbc@milwaukeecountywi.gov) within one business day to when any of the following occurs with one of their 
employees, DSP, Indirect Staff, owners, directors, etc.  
a. The person has been charged with or convicted of any crime. 
b. The person has been or is being investigated for any act, offense or omission, including abuse, neglect or 

misappropriation. 
c. The person has a substantiated finding of abuse, neglect or misappropriation. 
d. The person has been denied a license or had their license restricted or otherwise limited. 

 
G. The Caregiver Background Check, review of criminal convictions, includes the following: 

 
1. For any barred offense per Wis. Stat. § 50.065 (See Attachment 5 for List of Barred Offenses: Table I (serving  

  individuals 18 years of age or older) and Table II (serving individuals under age 18), and 
2. Additionally, for caregivers providing direct care to children and youth, review for any Wis. Stats. Chapter 948 offenses 

whether or not covered by state barred offense list (See Attachment 2, Amended Milwaukee County Resolution, File 20-
287), and 

3. Substantially Related Test (DHS 12.06, and section IV, H. of this Policy). 
 

DHHS will accept findings of rehabilitation of any individual as determined by the State of Wisconsin’s appeal process 
under Wis. Stat. § 50.065. 

 
H. In addition to compliance with Caregiver Background Checks and the amended Milwaukee County Caregiver Resolution, 

provider agency will also consider conviction history of any candidate before requesting to add as a DSP and/or Indirect 
Staff to determine suitability based on a substantially related offense test as described in DHS 12.06 
(https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/code/admin_code/dhs/001/12.pdf). 

   
In the following instances, provider agency shall obtain a copy of the Criminal Complaint and Judgment of Conviction from 
the Clerk of Court’s Office, to determine whether a conviction is substantially related to care of a client: 

 
• Any recent (within 5 years) misdemeanor criminal convictions as listed in 50.065 Wis Stats; i.e. battery, disorderly 

conduct, invasion of privacy, harassment; etc. or, 
• Any felony convictions (within 5 years); or 
• Any charges with open dispositions (for offenses that would possibly affect the provider’s ability to enter the Network 

or DHHS)  
 

This documentation shall be retained in the personnel file and submitted to the Respective Network or DHHS upon 
request.  When requested, the respective Network and/or DHHS will conduct an administrative review, on a case-by-case 
basis, to determine whether an offense is substantially related.  The respective Network and/or DHHS reserves the right 
to make final determination regarding conviction records and whether a conviction is substantially related to the Covered 
Service in question.   

 
 Agency should take into consideration the following when making a substantially related determination: 

a. Severity of past convictions. 
b. Number of past convictions. 
c. Patterns of past criminal behavior. 
d. Duration of time between the first charge/conviction and the last charge/conviction (i.e., does the person have a 

criminal history that spans 2 years or 20 years). 
e. Time frame between the last charge/conviction and current date (i.e., were they last charged/ convicted of a 

crime 1 year ago or 18 years ago). 
f. Specific convictions and their relevance to performing the job/position being applied for. 

 
 
 

mailto:dhhscbc@milwaukeecountywi.gov
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/code/admin_code/dhs/001/12.pdf


DHHS 
Caregiver Background Checks Policy 
Page 5 of 5 
 

 
I. Agencies shall not assign any staff to conduct work under the agreement who does not meet the requirements of the 

Wisconsin Caregiver Laws and the amended Milwaukee County Caregiver Resolution, File No. 20-287.  
  
 
For References and more Information 

 
Please see Wisconsin Department of Health Services (DHS) 12 “Caregiver Background Checks,” ss. 48.685 “Children’s Code” and 
50.065 “Uniform Licensure” of Wisconsin Statutes. 
 
DHS Caregiver Program -> http://www.dhs.wisconsin.gov/caregiver/ 

 
Wisconsin Caregiver Program Manual  -> https://www.dhs.wisconsin.gov/library/P-00038.htm 

 
Attachments: 

1. DHS 12 – Caregiver Background Checks  
2. Amended Milwaukee County Caregiver Resolution File No. 20-287 
3. Sample DOJ 
4. Sample DHS Letter 

*BID form not attached - (use current version DHS F-82064 Background Information Disclosure - 
https://www.dhs.wisconsin.gov/library/F-82064.htm) 

5. WI Caregiver Program Offenses Affecting Caregiver Eligibility (Offense List) 
 
 

 
 

http://www.dhs.wisconsin.gov/caregiver/
https://www.dhs.wisconsin.gov/library/F-82064.htm
















DHHS POLICY 001 – Attachment 2 
Amended Milwaukee County Caregiver Resolution File No. 20-287 
 
 

 

 - 1 - 

By Supervisor Moore Omokunde      File No. 20-287 1 

 2 

 3 

A RESOLUTION 4 

 5 

to modify the policy of the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) and other 6 

Departments  to adopt the Wisconsin Caregiver Law for barrable offenses  as part of the 7 

background check process for contract agency employees who provide direct care and 8 

services to youth, adhere to  the State of Wisconsin Rehabilitation appeals review 9 

process, retain the County’s policy to recognize Wisconsin Chapter 948 Crimes Against 10 

Children as a barrable offense (for those offenses not already barred by the State 11 

Caregiver Law) and urge the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board which oversees 12 

the DHHS-Behavioral Health Division to adopt this policy 13 

 14 

 15 

WHEREAS, many  Milwaukee County Department of Health and Human 16 

Services (DHHS)employees and   vendors  serve as caregivers for families and youth in 17 

Milwaukee County; and 18 

 19 

WHEREAS, a caregiver is defined by the Wisconsin Caregiver Law as a person 20 

who is employed by, under contract, or a volunteer that has direct contact with clients, 21 

client’s personal property or client information that is planned, scheduled or expected or 22 

periodic; and 23 

 24 

WHEREAS, in April 1999, the Milwaukee County Board of Supervisors adopted 25 

File No. 99-233, a resolution that among other things, requires all County departments 26 

that contract for youth services and programs to complete background checks on those 27 

individuals providing services, to ensure they are not involved in criminal and  gang 28 

activity,  and designated certain offenses, including Chapter 948 of the Wisconsin 29 

Statutes – Crimes Against Children as barrable offenses, and two (2) or more 30 

misdemeanors involving separate incidences within the last three (3) years; and 31 

 32 

WHEREAS, in May 2000, the Milwaukee County Board of Supervisors amended 33 

File No. 99-233 to separate and bar individuals for five (5) years who have committed 34 

crimes in violation of the Uniform Controlled Substances Act under Chapter 961 35 

Wisconsin State Statutes, excluding simple possession, from those who have 36 

committed crimes against another individual(s) causing bodily harm or death who are 37 

permanently barred; and 38 



DHHS POLICY 001 – Attachment 2 
Amended Milwaukee County Caregiver Resolution File No. 20-287 
 
 

 

 - 2 - 

WHEREAS, DHHS contracts with many vendors which employ individuals who 39 

provide direct care and services to youth and families in Milwaukee County that 40 

positively impact youth and their families; and 41 

 42 
WHEREAS, under the current background check policy automatic barrable 43 

offenses, with no rehabilitation appeal process, may prevent individuals from sharing 44 

relatable personal experiences that positively influence the attitudes and behaviors of 45 

at-risk youth and prevent those individuals from working with families in the county; and 46 

 47 

WHEREAS, the State of Wisconsin Department of Health Services 48 

Administrative Code, Chapter 12 – Caregiver Background Checks, allows for the 49 

Substantially Related Test to be utilized to allow convictions, such as for Domestic 50 

Violence, to be reviewed to determine if it should disqualify the individual for the position 51 

they hold; and 52 

 53 

WHEREAS, the State of Wisconsin under Wis. Stat. § 50.065(5c) permits an 54 

individual who has failed to demonstrate to the Wisconsin Department of Health 55 

Services that he or she has been rehabilitated has the right to appeal to the Secretary of 56 

Health Services and request a judicial case review; and 57 

 58 

WHEREAS, the State of Wisconsin outlines the required criteria that an individual 59 

must adhere to and submit to the department in Wis. Stat. § 50.065(5d); and 60 

 61 

WHEREAS, the State agency has 90 days to review the rehabilitation plan upon 62 

receipt, and unless disapproved by the department, the plan is considered approved; 63 

and 64 

 65 

WHEREAS, under the current policy Milwaukee County does not have 66 

rehabilitation review appeals process which would allow an individual convicted of a 67 

barred offense the opportunity to provide convincing evidence that he or she has been 68 

rehabilitated, even if the State has already granted a rehabilitation review request under 69 

the Caregiver Law guidelines; and  70 

 71 

WHEREAS, any individual who has been barred from working with youth under 72 

the Wisconsin Caregiver Law shall be granted the opportunity to prove to the State and 73 

the County that he or she has been rehabilitated, as individuals with prior convictions 74 



DHHS POLICY 001 – Attachment 2 
Amended Milwaukee County Caregiver Resolution File No. 20-287 
 
 

 

 - 3 - 

often have relevant experience(s) which youth may relate to, will help strengthen 75 

communities impacted by mass incarceration; now, therefore, 76 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, the Milwaukee County Board of Supervisors hereby adopts a 77 

policy to amend the background check process for the Milwaukee County Department 78 

of Health and Human Services (DHHS) and other departments that provide services to 79 

youth directly or through contract vendors services, to adopt the barrable offenses 80 

outlined in the Wisconsin Caregiver Law and to accept the rehabilitation of any 81 

individual as determined by the State of Wisconsin’s appeal process under Wis. Stat. § 82 

50.065; and 83 

 84 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Milwaukee County shall maintain Chapter 85 

948 Crimes Against Children as barrable offenses, whether also barred by the 86 

Wisconsin Caregiver Law or not, as part of the background check process for contract 87 

agency employees who provide direct care to youth, a copy of which is hereto attached 88 

to this file; and  89 

 90 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Milwaukee County shall also follow the State 91 

of Wisconsin Department of Health Services Administrative Code, Chapter 12 – 92 

Caregiver Background Checks, for any criminal convictions using the Substantially 93 

Related Test to provide greater uniformity and understanding by vendors; and 94 

 95 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Department of Health and Human 96 

Services is requested to collaborate with the Office of Corporation Counsel to modify 97 

the current background check process to comport with the direction provided in this 98 

resolution for implementation as soon as practicable; and 99 

 100 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Department of Health and Human Services is 101 

requested to provide an informational report to the County Board on the status of this 102 

reform as soon as practical and is requested to submit the new policy to the Milwaukee 103 

County Mental Health Board for consideration and possible adoption to ensure a 104 

uniform policy that comports with the State Caregiver Law and appeal process except 105 

for those Chapter 948 offenses barred only by the County.  106 

















Chairman:  Thomas Lutzow 
Vice-Chairperson:  Maria Perez 
Secretary:  Michael Davis 
Senior Executive Assistant:  Jodi Mapp, 257-5202 

MILWAUKEE COUNTY MENTAL HEALTH BOARD 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

Thursday, August 13, 2020 - 1:30 P.M. 
Teleconference Meeting 

A G E N D A 

SCHEDULED ITEMS: 

1. Welcome.  (Chairman Lutzow) 

2. Introduction of and Presentation by the Acting Director of the Office of African American Affairs 
(OAAA) on the OAAA’s Vision to Support the Overall Vision and Mission of Milwaukee County.  
(Jeff Roman, Office of African American Affairs – Verbal Report/Informational Only) 

3. Reform of the Request for Proposals and Contracting Process.  (David Muhammad, 
Department of Health and Human Services - Verbal Report/Informational Only) 

4. Third-Party Fiscal Agent for the Provision of Mental Health Board Support Staff Oversight 
Request for Proposals Update.  (Matt Fortman, Behavioral Health Division – Verbal 
Report/Informational Only) 

5. Adjournment. 

To Access the Meeting, Call the Number Below: 

(414) 436-3530
Conference ID: 367 565 759# 

The next meeting for the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board Executive Committee 
Will be on Tuesday, December 1, 2020, at 1:30 p.m. at a 

Location to be Determined 

Visit the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board Web Page at: 
https://county.milwaukee.gov/EN/DHHS/About/Governance 

ADA accommodation requests should be filed with the Milwaukee County Office for Persons with Disabilities, 
278-3932 (voice) or 711 (TRS), upon receipt of this notice.

13

tel:+1%20414-436-3530,,367565759# 
https://county.milwaukee.gov/EN/DHHS/About/Governance


COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE 
Inter-Office Communication 

DATE: May 20, 2020 

TO: Supervisor Marcelia Nicholson, Chairwoman, Milwaukee County Board of Supervisors 

FROM: Shakita LaGrant-McClain, Interim Director, Department of Health and Human Services 
and Department on Aging 
Prepared by David Muhammad, Deputy Director, Department of Health and Human 
Services 

SUBJECT: An informational report from the Interim Director, Department of Health and Human 
Services, providing an update on racial equity and contracting 

Background 

On April 17, the Milwaukee County Board of Supervisors adopted File No. 20-173 which created Chapter 

108, “Achieving Racial Equity and Health,” of the Milwaukee County Code of General Ordinances.  DHHS 

is in alignment with this ordinance as DHHS leadership continues to focus on social determinants of health 

as well as racial and health equity through the work it does internally with its operations and externally, 

with its participants, contracted provider organizations, system, and community partners. Racial Equity 

and Contracting is one area identified by DHHS leadership in which there is an opportunity to address 

structural barriers and advance equitable policy and practice.  The primary goal is to assess DHHS’s 

contract procurement strategy and develop additional tactics to address structural barriers to expand the 

provider network and ensure that its diversity is representative of those served in DHHS.   

Currently, DHHS does most of its work through contracted provider organizations. In fact, over 50 percent 

of the budget is comprised of outside contracts.  The vast majority of these are nonprofits and traditional 

diversity procurement strategies do not fully address the needs of this sector.  In response, DHHS seeks 

to establish a collaborative Racial Equity in Contracting Workgroup to assess our institutional practices 

through a racial equity lens.  It is our goal to develop DHHS’s capacity to improve its work with providers 

and institutional partners to ensure a consistent process that addresses their needs.   

Challenges and Opportunities 
Our initial assessment found that many smaller agencies face challenges with administrative capacity and 
staff training. These providers often encounter differences in the Request for Proposals (RFP) process 
moving from provider networks to other divisions.  Additionally, there are key indicators to help providers 
successfully compete in the RFP process.  This includes data on staff turnover, examples of how cultural 
competency is addressed, and emergency management plans. Specific capacity building efforts and 
workshops can improve and ensure a more equitable contracting process for DHHS.   

Executive Committee Item 3



 
DHHS Racial Equity and Contracting  May 20, 2020 
P a g e  | 2 
 
 
 
 

While it may be more organizationally efficient to work with large providers with stronger administrative 
capacity, this does not guarantee better outcomes for impacted populations. The utilization of the GARE 
RE Tool will allow for the consideration of racial equity and help address the disparities in the social 
determinants of health.  There is also a need to develop greater internal capacity to measure outcomes 
for providers that serve specific needs of targeted populations.  DHHS benefits from partnerships with 
providers that specialize in servicing specific populations. Often, a lack of institutional diversity can 
promote narrative bias against smaller providers.  Therefore, this process may allow for the identification 
of measures to expand the provider network and encourage non-profit diversity which may positively 
impact the talent pool that is available to Milwaukee County.  The following are some Challenges and 
Opportunities to achieving an expanded and diverse talent pool of providers: 

Challenges 

1) DHHS has received appeals for decisions and there has historically been a disparity between 
smaller institutions and larger, less diverse institutions being awarded. 

2) Costs associated with securing DBE status, insurance requirements, training, and crisis plans may 
disadvantage smaller organizations. 

3) Distinction between fee for services and purchase of services has varying implications on different 
types of organizations. 

4) Knowledge gaps and capacity for dedicated bandwidth to complete administrative requirements. 
5) Current scoring rubric advantages larger, often less diverse institutions. 

Opportunities:  

1) Opportunity exists to advance diverse leadership in this region due to the symbiotic relationship 
between the non-profit sector and public sector. Currently, there is not a clear path for diverse 
leaders to enter Milwaukee County or advance from within Milwaukee County. Furthermore, this 
has implications to Milwaukee County’s institutional commitment which is highlighted in the five 
to three-year objectives of the strategic plan outline in file #20-173, “Milwaukee County 
leadership, management, and staff will reflect the demographics (including but not exclusively 
racial) of Milwaukee County.” 

2) Championing equitable contracting processes is not only the right thing to do, it is a key factor in 
Milwaukee County’s ability to increase access to care that is acceptable and appropriate to meet 
the needs of individuals, children, and families with dignity and quality. 

3) The utilization of the RE Tool will allow for greater transparency which may enable DHHS and 
Milwaukee County to build trust with the community and key-stakeholders. The RE Tool has a 
specific component that focuses on community engagement, which will enable this.  



 
DHHS Racial Equity and Contracting  May 20, 2020 
P a g e  | 3 
 
 

4) Utilizing the RE Tool to review the current scoring rubric, RFP requirements, and other items 
associated with contracting may reveal additional areas for increased equity.  

 
DHHS Participant Demographics and Racial Equity 
The overwhelming majority of DHHS contract providers are non-profits that are not reached by traditional 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) or Targeted Business Enterprise (TBE) efforts.  Diversity is 
measured in the RFP process and efforts are underway to track representation in the provider network.  
There is a diversity gap that DHHS can address by encouraging the advancement of professionals of color  
in the human service sector.  The demographics of our participants speak to this need at all organizational 
levels. 
 
According to the most recent figures from the United States Census Bureau, Milwaukee County’s total 
population is 948,201. Females comprise 51.6 percent of the population. And the racial breakdown is 51 
percent White, 27 percent African American, 5 percent Asian, 15 percent Latino and 1 percent American 
Indian. DHHS provides services to all 19 cities with the City of Milwaukee being the largest service 
consumer. 

In 2018, DHHS served 84,778 individuals throughout its divisions and Energy Assistance Program. The 
breakdown of participants is as follows: 

• DYFS: 1,452 (2 percent) 

• BHD (excluding Wraparound Milwaukee): 13,017 (15 percent)  

• DSD: 5,843 (7 percent) 

• Housing Division: 2,385 (3 percent) 

• Wraparound: 1,306 (2 percent) 

• Energy Assistance: 60,775 (72 percent) 

Data Snapshot 
Males received the majority of services provided by BHD (61 percent) and Wraparound (65 percent) 
while DYFS’ participant population was 79 percent male. Housing and the Disabilities Services Division 
(DSD) each served over 50 percent females in its programs with Housing being slightly over 66 percent. 
The racial breakdown for participants is as follows with all other groups being at less than 1 percent:  

Division African American White Latino 

DYFS 2018 77% 13% 9% 

DSD 2018 68% 28% 0% 

Housing 2019 69% 30% 0% 

BHD 2018 (ex. Wrap) 49% 33% 7% 

Wraparound 2018 64% 14% 14% 



 
DHHS Racial Equity and Contracting  May 20, 2020 
P a g e  | 4 
 
 

 

Note that in the graphic above, the vast majority of DHHS participants are from Milwaukee and 
concentrated within several zip codes. 
 
Racial Equity and DHHS Contracting Best Practices 
Successful contracting for racial equity and achieving greater participation of diverse organizations may 
consider the following factors:   
 

• Representation of people of color on board of directors, administration, or ownership; 
• Composition of the agency’s overall staff diversity, not just Milwaukee County specific program 

staff; and  
• Consider how the organization’s mission and vision statement addresses targeting populations 

of color and historically underserved communities. 

DHHS has already undertaken the following actions: 

• Expanded DHHS-BHD RFP review panels from 3 reviewers to 5 panelists to minimize outlier 
scores;  

• Implemented requirement that all review panels be racially diverse before proceeding with any 
scoring process;  

• Held preliminary interviews with internal and external stakeholders regarding potential and 
reported barriers to the RFP Process  

• Assess the current diversity of provider network and report out data  



 
DHHS Racial Equity and Contracting  May 20, 2020 
P a g e  | 5 
 
 

• Scheduled June/July RFP technical assistance session for upcoming opportunities 

• Evaluated internal racial equity efforts to increase cultural competency in DHHS as a part of 
“No Wrong Door” Future State efforts 

The Racial Equity in Contracting Workgroup will evaluate potential strategies to expand contracting 
opportunities for diverse organizations utilizing the RE Tool. Opportunities may include, but are not 
limited to the following: 

• Determine potential maximum contract amounts that that could be carved out and available for 
smaller providers that serve targeted populations; it could, for example, be a contract threshold 
of $250,000.  

• For certain RFP opportunities that serve specific populations or niche providers, identify a 
maximum annual budget of an organization to qualify for potential contract opportunities; it 
could for example be an annual budget of $2 million, or $2.5 million.  This would provide a 
pathway for smaller entities that provide services to priority populations.  

• Review implications of purchase of service contract payment methodology versus fee for service.  
In some cases, there may be advantages that best meet the needs of newer or smaller entities. 

• Reassess insurance requirements for contractors that are sole proprietors.  If they are single 
proprietors with no employees, workman’s comp requirements can be a challenge. 

• Include providers in the program design process to better inform quality assurance functions and 
for RFP opportunities to address specific social determinants of health for specific populations. 

• Review the scoring rubric for weighted factors that may advantage larger institutions (training 
budgets for example) but also increase points for those factors that promote diversity. 

• Create RFP standing review panels by division to ensure diversity and community participation. 
• Implement participatory budget sessions to inform priorities and promote transparency. 

According to the Governmental Alliance for Racial Equity (GARE), there are several best practices which 
should be implemented during a contracting equity program. DHHS is in alignment with GARE and seeks 
to advance the following tactics:  

Ensure RFP process is 
clear and accessible   

• Revision of scoring process 
and rubric 

• Review communication 
tactics and technology 
platforms which house RFP 
announcements, materials 
and submission forms 

 

• Increase number of diverse-led 
organizations who successfully 
apply for RFPs and submit all 
required documents 

• Decreased number of appeals for 
RFP decisions 

Evaluate progress and 
lead a continuous 

• Include internal QA/QI staff 
and assess current capacity 

• Fidelity measures to know if the 
policies and practices are being 



 
DHHS Racial Equity and Contracting  May 20, 2020 
P a g e  | 6 
 
 
process of enhancing 
the program 

• Establish DHHS standards 
for how cultural 
competency is defined  

• Include external partners in 
the setting of metrics 

implemented consistently across 
the department  

• Diversity of contracted provider 
admin/board leadership 

• Diversity of participants 

Drive culture change to 
promote an inclusive 
procurement and 
contracting 
environment 

• Track and collect 
demographic data of 
providers in alignment with 
CBDP process 

• Establish goals for provider 
network diversity 

• Incorporate internal partners 
(OAAA, Procurement, DAS) and 
external partners to evaluate 
outcomes 

• Measure economic impact to 
communities of color alongside 
program outcomes 

 
 
Racial Equity and Contracting Action Workgroup  
This action team will be composed of members from the Milwaukee County community, government 
employees and elected officials who are diverse in race, ethnicity, gender, ability, sexual orientation, 
leadership and work level, experience, discipline, etc. This group will assist DHHS Leaders to intentionally 
and critically examine race, ethnicity and health equity when analyzing problems, proposing solutions 
and measuring success of contracting processes.  
 
Proposed Objectives:  

• Develop processes based on the GARE Best Practices, Milwaukee County Vision and DHHS 
strategic priorities, and community voice to advance greater contracting equity within DHHS 

• Ensure power dynamics are considered to determine the beneficiary of the task, strategy or 
solution  

• Establish metrics to measure impact on Human Service Provider network, social determinants of 
health, and economic impact 

• Identify and assess differential impacts, unintentional and/or intentional, that result from 
contracting processes  

• Create communication and engagement tactics for stakeholders 

• Champion the establishment of an overall policy that advances equity within DHHS and can 
inform best practices countywide  

Next Steps 

DHHS plans to establish a Racial Equity and Contracting Action Workgroup that includes representation 
from the Office on African American Affairs (OAAA), County Board, provider network, community, DHHS 
team, and other leadership as determined by the County Executive’s office.  This workgroup will 
accomplish the following: 



 
DHHS Racial Equity and Contracting  May 20, 2020 
P a g e  | 7 
 
 

• Drafting of Workgroup charter, metrics, and timeline 

• Apply the GARE Racial Equity Tool to guide the work and evaluate recommendations 

• Review and draft recommendations of internal policy and RFP practices  

• Oversee the creation of a policy white paper and report regarding diversity in DHHS contracting 
and the department’s overall economic impact on communities of color 

• Identify strategies to address structural barriers to ensure a diverse provider network 

• Hire external evaluator and create advisory structure for implementation 

Timeline:  Completed by the end of 2020 

Recommendation 

This report is informational and no action is required.  

 
 
________________________________ 
Shakita LaGrant-McClain, Interim Director 
Department of Health and Human Services and Department on Aging 
 
 
 

cc: County Executive David Crowley  
Mary Jo Meyers, County Executive’s Office  
County Supervisor Supreme Moore-Omokunde  
Steve Cady, Research Director, Comptroller’s Office  

Pam Matthews, Fiscal & Management Analyst, DAS 

Lottie Maxwell-Mitchell, Research & Policy Analyst, Comptroller’s Office 

 



Chairperson:  Mary Neubauer 
Executive Assistant:  Kiara Abram, 257-7212 
BHD Staff:  Jennifer Bergersen 

MILWAUKEE COUNTY MENTAL HEALTH BOARD 
QUALITY COMMITTEE 

August 3, 2020 - 10:00 A.M. 
Microsoft Teams Meeting 

A G E N D A 
SCHEDULED ITEMS: 

1. Welcome (Chairwoman Neubauer) 

COMMUNITY SERVICES: 
2. Wraparound Milwaukee - Plan of Care; Pre and Post Evaluation (Dana James, Quality 

Assurance and Quality Improvement Manager; Adrienne Sulma, Integrated Services 
Manager) 

3. NIATX Project (Krista McNeil; Alternatives in Psychological Consultation) 

4. Value in Healthcare – A Phased Approach (Dr. Matt Drymalski, Clinical Program 
Director)    

5. Community Access to Recovery Services Mid Cycle Report (Dr. Matt Drymalski, Clinical 
Program Director; Justin Heller, Integrated Services Manager)   

6. Community Contract Vendor Quality Updates; A Place for Miracles Living Center, LLC 
(Amy Lorenz, Deputy Administrator, CARS) 

HOSPITAL SERVICES: 
7. Proposed 2020 BHD Inpatient Dashboard Q2 (Edward Warzonek, Quality Assurance 

Coordinator; Demetrius Anderson, Quality Improvement Manager; Dale Brown, RN, 
MSN; Jennifer Bergersen, COO) 

8. Sentinel Event Committee 2019 Annual Report (Dr. Sara Coleman, SEC Chair) 

9. Quality Assurance/Quality Improvement Hiring Update - Verbal (Demetrius Anderson, 
Quality Improvement Manager) 

10. Hospital Contracted Services Provider Update - Verbal (Luci Reyes-Agron) 

14



Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 
Quality Committee 
August 3, 2020 
2 of 2 
 

11. Annual Action Items for the Mental Health Board Quality Committee (Jennifer 
Bergersen, COO) 

 
12. Adjournment.  (Chairwoman Neubauer) 

 

To Access the Meeting, Call the Number Below: 
 

(414) 436-3530    
Conference ID: 318 289 280# 

 
The next regular meeting for the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board Quality Committee 

is October 5, 2020 at 10:00 a.m. 
 

Visit the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board Web Page at: 
 

https://county.milwaukee.gov/EN/DHHS/About/Governance 
 

ADA accommodation requests for Milwaukee County events should be filed with the Milwaukee 
County Office for Persons with Disabilities, 278-3932 (voice), 711 (TRS), or upon receipt of this 

notice. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

tel:+1%20414-436-3530,,318289280#%20
https://county.milwaukee.gov/EN/DHHS/About/Governance
https://county.milwaukee.gov/EN/Office-for-Persons-with-Disabilities
https://county.milwaukee.gov/EN/Office-for-Persons-with-Disabilities


Plan of Care
Redesign

Children’s Community Mental Health 
Services and Wraparound 

Milwaukee

Quality Committee Item 2



The Need
2

• POC is accessible, reflective of experience, and helpful to youth,
young adults, and families

• Care coordinators (CCs) and providers utilize an understandable
document to drive quality care consistent with program values.

UPDATED, USER-FRIENDLY DOCUMENT

• New data points based on multiple stakeholder input

• Seeks to better inform both administration and POC teams of progress
being made and needs met

IMPROVED QUALITY INDICATORS TO 
ASSESS QUALITY CARE



Pre-Evaluation 
Events

3

Administration 
and Sup/Lead 
Feedback

• Created the initial
draft of the new
POC

CC and 
Provider 
Feedback 
Sessions

• 4 sessions

• 63 respondents

• Mixed method
analysis

Parent and 
Young Adult 
Focus Group

• 1 session

• 9 respondents

• Qualitative
analysis

New POC 
Layout

• Sent to Synthesis
Developers

• Test the form
before go-live

New POC 
training

• All staff (admin,
CCs, etc.)
required

• Go live August
3rd, 2020



Feedback Themes
4

Qualitative themes gleaned from written and vocal feedback on the original and 

new drafts of the POC.

Provider

Themes

• New wording

• New layout

• Removal of sections due to

sensitive/triggering nature

• Removal of school attendance

graph

Parent/Young 

Adult Themes

• New plan is “straight and to-

the-point”

• Inclusion/exclusion of

diagnoses on full POC

• Improved layout and

accessibility

Shared

Themes

• More recent information

displayed on full plan

• Plan is first

• New layout is family-friendly

• Positive regard for Team Plan



Next Steps
Training

• Purpose: To inform staff of new changes, instruct form utilization, and help

staff understand its usefulness.

Assessment

• POC Audit: compare timeliness and content of submitted new POCs to the

past iteration.

• Post-Survey among providers: 3 and 6 month survey assessing utility,

knowledge, and applicability of the new POC.

Quality Improvement

• Determine if action is needed

• If so, construct a quality improvement plan to address needs uncovered by assessment

5



Post-Evaluation 
Timeline

6

August 3rd, 2020

• Go live in Synthesis

• CCs begin to use 
new POC form

November 2020

• 1st CC survey

February 2021

• 2nd CC survey
(follow-up)

March/April 
2021

• POC audits
completed by
Wraparound QA
department



AIM
90% OF APC EMPLOYEES 

WILL KNOW 3 MC3 VALUES.

NIATx Change Team Members: Rorey Kroening – Change Leader, Pam Fleider – Executive 
Director, Abby Matthews – CCS Consultant, J Bell – TCM Consultant, Karen Drexler – Data 
Collector, Mary Moftah – FSS Consultant, Michele Potrikus – Operations Consultant, Krista 
McNeil – REACH Consultant, Rob Bergeson - Agency Consultant

Quality Committee Item 3



Change Cycle #1
• Engaged APC Leadership Team to promote MC3 Values at

department meetings.
• Surveyed all 180 employees asking them to list any MC3

Values they know to get baseline data.
• Results: Received 86 responses, 44/86 (51%) knew 3 or
more MC3 Values, 26 responses reported not knowing any

MC3 Values.
What We Learned: 
 Established an aim of 90% of employees will know at least 3 MC3 Values.
 Adapted continuing to raise MC3 Values awareness  for all staff through Leadership

engagement at team meetings.



Change Cycle #2
• Leadership used MC3 Value ice breakers at team meetings.

• Re-surveyed all 180 employees asking them to list any MC3 Values they know
to compile data.

• Results: Received 61 responses, 53/61 responses reported knowing at least
3 MC3 Values ( 87%), 4 responses reported not knowing any MC3 Values.

• Went from 51% of employees knowing at least 3 MC3 Values in Cycle 1 to 
87% in Cycle 2

• Shared survey results with all staff via email.
What We Learned: 
 Awareness of MC3 Values increased overall. ( see data slide)
 Employees are operating under the MC3 Values umbrella but cannot always define their actions under a

specific MC3 Value name.
 Attending current MC3 meetings does not teach the foundation of what MC3 Values are or what MC3 is at

it’s core.



Change Cycle #2: Data
Results: 53/61 responses knew 3 MC3 Values (87%)

• Average: 4 values

• 4 staff didn’t know ANY values (7%)

• 5 staff knew all 9 values (8%)

• 11 “Non-Values” Mentioned:

• “Strength Based” (3)
• Disorder
• Fun
• Gather info
• Helping
• Respectful
• Integrity

• Learning
• Provider Integration



Change Cycle #3
Next Steps:
• Organize and schedule a MC3 Orientation event with Amy

Moebius at APC for all employees to attend.
• Continue to have Leadership in departments raise MC3

Values knowledge through ice breaker activities at team
meetings.

• Continue to survey staff for data purposes.
• Continue to share any survey results with all staff.



Change Cycle #3: Survey Results 
• After Cycle #3 MC3 Orientation was

done at APC, employees were
surveyed again.

• Survey results were 94.5% of
employees knew at least 3 MC3
Values.

• WE EXCEEDED OUR AIM OF 90%
OF EMPLOYEES KNOW AT LEAST 3
MC3 VALUES!

• The most commonly known MC3
Values were TIC and Culturally
Intelligent.



VALUE IN HEALTHCARE: A PHASED
APPROACH

Quality Committee Item 4



VALUE IN HEALTHCARE AND THE
QUADRUPLE AIM

• Value in healthcare is
founded upon the
accurate measurement
and application of the
Quadruple Aim

Population 
Health

Cost of 
Care

Staff 
Quality of 
Work Life

Client 
Experience 

of Care



NEXT STEPS: VALUE MODEL AS ROADMAP

Descriptive

• Quadruple Aim

Actionable

• Value Model



VALUE: A WORKING
DEFINITION

= Patient Outcomes   Dollars Spent on Care

• Porter also states that “any outcome measurement should include sufficient
measurement of risk factors or initial conditions to allow for risk
adjustment.” (p. 2479, Porter 2010)



VALUE AS A THREE-LEGGED STOOL

• The Value-Based Proposition:  A Model

• Cost of care, stratified by severity, linked to client
outcomes

O
ut

co
m

es
: 

H
ea

lt
h 

an
d 

E
xp

er
ie

nc
e

Value



Time 

$ Cost of Care

THE 
VALUE 
MODEL



IMMEDIATE NEXT 
STEPS AND PROGRESS 

THUS FAR…

Phase 3
Phase 3
• Set quality goals and evaluate progress

Phase 2
Phase 2
• Apply the Value Model (or some other paradigm)

Phase 1
Phase 1
• Complete foundation of Quadruple Aim



ESTABLISH 
CORE METRICS 
IN QUADRUPLE

AIM

Cost of care

Outcomes

Risk Stratification Variables 
(including social 
determinants)



COST OF CARE

Many ways to conceptualize

Cost of care report being built 
in Avatar*
• Developed in consultation with Fiscal

Department
• Uses cost value assigned per unit of care

delivered
• Accounts for purchase of service

contracts and Medicaid pass thru dollars

* Formula already being used in CARS



OUTCOMES

• Should be patient-centered and may include*:
• Acute Services (PCS and Detox under development!)
• Social Determinants
• Client Self Report
• Mortality

* Many of these are already reported in CARS Quarterly Dashboard

** Client experience metrics could be used as outcome as well



OUTCOMES: 
QUALITY OF LIFE

Quality of life (QOL) as a 
key outcome

Many potential benefits

• Ultra brief (single item)
• Program and client agnostic
• Broadly related to health, socio-

behavioral determinants
• Client centered
• Client reported*

* Please see handout for more QOL results



RISK 
STRATIFICATION

The process of adjusting 
estimates of outcome (cost, 
clinical, etc.), based variables that 
impact that outcome

Often based on diagnosis; more 
recent risk adjustment efforts 
have incorporated social and 
behavioral determinants of health



RISK STRATIFICATION: 
CURRENT EFFORT AND

NEXT STEPS

• Need to have the right
variables in place

• CARS has a preliminary social
determinants screen built and
ready for implementation

Category Examples of Variables

Demographic 
characteristics

Age, gender, origin, and ethnic group 

Clinical factors Diagnoses, comorbidities, and 
symptoms

Socio-economic 
characteristics

Education, income, and marital status 

Health behaviors Smoking, alcohol consumption, and 
diet 

Preferences QOL, expectations of healthcare 
system



NEXT STEPS

Pilot Pilot Value Model

Continue
Continue to build out key, 
foundational data elements of 
Quadruple Aim



POSSIBLE 
APPLICATIONS OF

VALUE MODEL?

Population health outcomes 

Contract performance measures

Contract awards (initial and extensions)

Utilization Management/Utilization Review

Continued dashboard development/revision

Identifying and addressing waste/low value care

Other QI projects?



THOUGHTS?



APPENDIX: 
SINGLE ITEM QUALITY OF LIFE DATA



SINGLE ITEM QOL AS OUTCOME: 
PRELIMINARY DATA (N=969)

35.90%

47.30%

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

40.00%

45.00%

50.00%

Intake Follow Up

% of Clients Reporting Good or Very Good Quality 
of Life: Intake to Follow Up (N=969)

McNemar’s= 32.111; p < .001

3.11

3.35

2.95

3.00

3.05

3.10

3.15

3.20

3.25

3.30

3.35

3.40

Intake Follow Up

TOTAL QUALITY OF LIFE SCORE: 
INTAKE TO FOLLOW UP

Paired Samples t-test: t(968)=-6.530, p < .001
Effect Size: d = .25
Standardized Response Mean: = .21

Cohen’s Convention: Small d = .2; Medium d = .5; Large d = .8



QOL DATA: 
EMPLOYMENT

STATUS
15.50%

16.50%

19.80%

31.30%

Employment at Intake Employment at Follow Up

% of Clients with Employment from Intake to Follow Up -
By QOL Status (N=957)

Poor QOL Good QOL



QOL DATA: EMPLOYMENT STATUS

18.40%

29.70%

14.00%

19.40%

23.30%

33.00%

13.60%

15.50%

Employment at Intake Employment at Follow Up

QOL Improved (239)

QOL Got Worse (129)

QOL Stayed Good (215)

QOL Stayed Bad (374)

41.63%

61.41%

38.57%

13.97%

% Relative Change



QOL DATA: 
STABLE HOUSING 

STATUS

59.40%

73.00%72.80%

84.20%

Stable Housing at Intake Stable Housing at Follow Up

% of Clients with Stable Housing from Intake to Follow Up 
- By QOL Status (N=952)

Poor QOL Good QOL



QOL DATA: STABLE HOUSING STATUS

58.80%

84.90%

72.70%

74.40%72.80%

83.40%

59.80%

72.60%

50.00%

55.00%

60.00%

65.00%

70.00%

75.00%

80.00%

85.00%

90.00%

Stable Housing at Intake Stable Housing at Follow Up

QOL Improved (238)

QOL Got Worse (121)

QOL Stayed Good (217)

QOL Stayed Bad (376)

14.56%

44.39%

2.34%

21.40%

% Relative Change



QOL DATA: SOCIAL
INTERACTION 

STATUS

68.20%

78.50%78.20%

90.30%

Social Interaction at Intake Social Interaction at Follow Up

% of Clients Reporting Interactions with Family/Friends in 
Last 30 Days 

from Intake to Follow Up - By QOL Status (N=950)

Poor QOL Good QOL



QOL DATA: SOCIAL INTERACTION STATUS

72.40%

89.20%

72.90%

82.90%81.50%

91.50%

65.60%

77.00%

50.00%

55.00%

60.00%

65.00%

70.00%

75.00%

80.00%

85.00%

90.00%

95.00%

Social Interaction at Intake Social Interaction at Follow Up

QOL Improved (232)

QOL Got Worse (129)

QOL Stayed Good (211)

QOL Stayed Bad (378)

12.27%

23.20%

13.72%

17.38%

% Relative Change



QOL: SUMMARY STATS

• 24.77% moved from “poor” to “good” quality of life by the 6 month follow up

• 36.95% moved up at least one level on the 5 point QOL scale

• Compared to those with “poor” QOL, those with “good” QOL were:

• 89.70% increase in likelihood of being employed

• 15.34% increase in likelihood of having stable housing

• 15.03% increase in likelihood of interacting with family or friends in last 30 days

• Individuals who quality of life improved from “poor” to “good” experienced a greater
degree of relative improvement in every category, compared to every other group



QOL SUMMARY

Brief

Patient-reported, patient-centered

Program agnostic

Appears sensitive to change

Has solid criterion validity

Recovery-oriented



Community Access to Recovery Services Mid Cycle Report 

Mental Health Board Quality Committee Meeting 

August 3rd, 2020 

Quality Initiative/Project: 

Quadruple Aim Impacted 

Population 
Health 

Client 
Experience 

Cost of Care 
Staff Quality 

of Life 

1. Qualitative Research Process:

This effort formalized a process of conducting Focus Groups of BHD 
consumers/customers to ensure that the voice of the consumer is incorporated 
into quality improvement measures.  Current efforts include exploring “quality 
of life” measure with consumers and validating PPS data collection and entry 
with providers.  Considering COVID, we are exploring telephone interviews with 
a sample of individuals to get the qualitative data normally obtained through in-
person Focus Groups.  

2. Value in Healthcare:

The core premise of “value” in healthcare is the efficient allocation of resources 
to achieve the best possible outcomes for clients and populations, or, 
“health outcomes achieved per dollar spent.” This calculation is built upon 
effective and accurate assessment of the domains of the Quadruple Aim (health 
of populations, client experience, cost of care, staff quality of work life), and 
represents an end goal for organizations and systems attempting to realize the 
Quadruple Aim. For this topic, we will be reviewing a PowerPoint which details 
the efforts of CARS thus far to develop a model of “value” for CARS services, 
built upon the foundation of the Quadruple Aim. 

Quality Committee Item 5



3. Recovery Support Coordination Value Analysis:

The aforementioned value in healthcare model is being used by CARS to 
examine a number of programs with high expenditures, beginning with RSC 
(case management for clients with substance use disorders). Using a 
combination of cost/volume metrics, outcomes, and client experience, our goal 
is to understand who an ideal candidate for this program and how much service 
leads to the best outcomes. 

4. Dashboard Implementation:

The Research & Evaluation Team is always working to improve its existing 
dashboards, and exploring new options for more efficient, and user-friendly 
dashboards.  Team members have worked with other CARS staff to identify 
more limited sets of actionable metrics that can be used in a meaningful way.  
The team continues to explore new dashboard technology from multiple 
sources, in an effort to make our data more transparent and create a more data 
driven team in CARS and BHD. 

5. Client Experience Survey Implementation:

Implementation of the internally created Client Experience survey is ongoing, 
with 3 grants and 4 programs now utilizing the survey. Through the use of the 
survey platform Qualtrics, program managers will also be able to monitor their 
survey results in real-time and track progress toward achieving Contract 
Performance Measures, as well as prioritize the voice of the consumer in care 
delivery.  

6. Brief Literature Review Process to support Data-Driven Decision-Making:

This project was initiated in early 2020 to support policy decisions and inform 
data-driven decision making. This discussion will center on the process CARS 
developed to rapidly conduct a brief, targeted literature review. We believe this 
method helps us to make more informed business decisions through a careful, 



yet efficient, evaluation of existing research on a given topic, building on the 
efforts of others and while simultaneously determining its local feasibility. We 
will also discuss the application of this rapid review methodology to several 
recent real-world examples. 

7. Diversion and Readmission as Quality Metrics:

This effort began with a desire from multiple staff to develop BHD-wide 
outcome metrics through a collaborative, cross-departmental workgroup. 
Moreover, the workgroup believed that these broader, organizational/system 
metrics could inform the departmental and programmatic dashboards within 
BHD, such that all business units throughout the organization had a shared 
focus on certain key quality metrics. These efforts have begun to create greater 
departmental cohesion and alignment to a shared vision, particularly with 
regards to Crisis Redesign, and has led to the development of several quality 
metrics that we hope to finalize and present to the MHB later this year.    

8. Detox Deep Dive:

The Research & Evaluation team and members of the CARS AODA team have 
joined forces in an effort to better understand the needs of Detoxification 
consumers. Through review of the literature, analysis of demographic and 
utilization data, meetings with program managers and staff, and focus groups 
with consumers, this group’s goal is to create performance measures that will 
better reflect the goals of Detoxification. 



9455 Watertown Plank Road | Milwaukee, WI 53226 
414-257-6995 | milwaukee.gov/BHD

A Place for Miracles Living Center, LLC 

Attention: David Howard/Toni Howard 

7022 North 43rd Street 

Milwaukee, WI 53209 

June 11, 2020 

RE: Potential Contract Violations 

Dear Mrs. Toni Howard, Mr. David Howard, 

Milwaukee County Behavioral Health Division (MCBHD), Community Access to 

Recovery Services (CARS) was made aware that David Howard, Co-Owner of A Place 

for Miracles Living Center, LLC (A Place for Miracles), on or around May 11, 2020 may 

have been arrested in connection with injuries a resident sustained at one of your group 

homes. 

Please be aware that while the alleged incident did not occur at a facility that is currently 
under contract with CARS; that per A Place for Miracles current Fee for Service 
Agreement (FFSA), with CARS, Policy and Procedure 005 Provider Obligations, Section 
Provider Obligations for DSPs and Indirect Staff, section O; states that A Place for 
Miracles shall notify CARS of any new arrests, charges, or convictions within 24 hours 
of the event for all Direct Service Providers. David Howard, as a Co-Owner of A Place 
for Miracles, is considered a Direct Service Provider; and as CARS was not notified of 
the arrest, and charges, A Place for Miracles is currently in violation of the terms of their 
agreement. 

Additionally, per section Twenty-Five of the current FFSA, Corrective Action, 
Conditional Status, Suspension, & Milwaukee County Debarment, CARS can impose a 
condition of Corrective Action for a client safety related matter. As a result of A Place for 
Miracles’ failure to notify CARS of the arrest and charges, the nature of the allegations 
against David Howard, and because they are related to the care of a client in A Place 
for Miracles care, CARS is suspending all referral of CARS clients to A Place for 
Miracles effective May 29, 2020. 

Furthermore, please be aware that CARS Staff has made the Guardian of the client 

currently residing at A Place for Miracles facility, aware of the allegations as well, and 

are working with the Guardian to relocate the client to another facility. 

Additionally, per your current FFSA; A Place for Miracles may file a formal grievance or 
otherwise appeal this decision in accordance with the Purchaser Policies and Procedures, 

Quality Committee Item 6



9455 Watertown Plank Road | Milwaukee, WI 53226 
414-257-6995 | milwaukee.gov/BHD

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board policy for contracts with BHD, Article 1, 
Procurement Procedure Administrative Manual MCBHD, Legal & Contractual Remedies. 

If you need additional information, please send inquiries to 
bhdproviders@milwaukeecountywi.gov. 

Sincerely, 

Dennis B. Buesing, CPA 
Contract Administrator 
Milwaukee County Department 
of Health and Human Services 
1220 W Vliet Street, Suite 304 
Milwaukee, WI 53205 
Coggs Ph: 414-289-5853 
BHD Ph: 414-257-7788 

Cc: Brenda SJ, Amy L, Jennifer W, Janet F 

mailto:bhdproviders@milwaukeecountywi.gov


1 

2020 Q2 MILWAUKEE COUNTY 
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIVISION 

INPATIENT DASHBOARD

 

Quarter YTD Quality Indicator Threshold Description 

Q1: Rate=6.7%  
Q2: Rate=10.2% 
Q3: 
Q4: 

Rate=8.3% Percent of patients 
returning to PCS 
within 3 days 

Rate 
           X < 7.8% 

           X = 7.8% 

           X > 7.8% 

Rate=Count of client visits within 3 days of prior 
visit/Total client visits  
Q1: 116 readmissions within 3 days by 84 unique 
individuals 
Q2: 154 readmissions within 3 days by 82 unique 
individuals 
In 2020 Q2, PCS had 2 outlier patients who had 21 
PCS visits each.   

Q1: Rate=22.4%  
Q2: Rate=26.2% 
Q3: 
Q4: 

Rate=24.2% Percent of patients 
returning to PCS 
within 30 days 

Rate 
           X < 24% 

           X = 24% 

           X > 24% 

Rate=Count of client visits within 30 days of prior 
visit/Total client visits  
Q1: 387 readmissions within 30 days by 206 unique 
individuals 
Q2: 395 readmissions within 30 days by 182 unique 
individuals 
In 2020 Q2, PCS had 2 outlier patients who had 21 
PCS visits each.   

Q1: Rate=100% 
Q2: Rate=100% 
Q3: 
Q4: 

Rate=100% Percent of time on 
waitlist status 

Rate 
           X < 50% 

           X = 50% 

           X > 50% 

Rate=PCS hours on Waitlist Status / Total hours in 
time period x 100.  
Joint Commission reports that psychiatric patients 
board in the ED on average 6 hours.  Currently, BHD 
waitlisted patients are on waitlist status for an 
average of 7.5 hours. 

Q1: Rate=2.3 (n=4) 
Q2: Rate=6.0 (n=9) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

Rate=4.1 
(n=13) 

Behavioral Codes 
(Code 1)  

Rate 
           X < 2.3 

           X = 2.3 

           X > 2.3 

Rate=Behavioral codes per 1,000 PCS visits 
The objective of this metric is to not only to monitor 
the quantity/rate of codes called resulting in further 
treatment (Restraint and Seclusion). 
At the next meeting information regarding the 
outcomes will be reviewed. 

Q1: Rate=0.0 (n=0) 
Q2: Rate=0.0 (n=0) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

Rate=0.0 
(n=0) 

Physical Aggression - 
Patient/Patient 

Incidents 
           Zero 

           2 or Less 

> 2

Rate=Pt/Pt physical aggression incidents per 1,000 
PCS visits. 

Q1: Rate=1.2 (n=2) 
Q2: Rate=0.0 (n=0) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

Rate=0.6 
(n=2) 

Physical Aggression - 
Patient/Staff 

Incidents 
           Zero 

           2 or Less 

> 2

Rate=Pt/Staff physical aggression incidents per 
1,000 PCS visits. 

Target Key:   Better Than Expected  Expected Worse Than Expected 
Psychiatric Crisis 

Service (PCS) 

 Quality Committee Item 7



2 

Q1: Rate=.58 (n=1) 
Q2: Rate=0.0 (n=0) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

Rate=.29 
(n=1) 

Patient Elopement 

Incidents 
 Zero 

           1 

> 2

Rate=Patient elopements per 1,000 PCS visits 
Elopement definition: Patient eloped from locked 
unit and returned within the building or patient 
eloped from locked unit and exited the building. 

Q1: Rate=0.0 (n=0) 
Q2: Rate=0.7 (n=1) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

Rate=0.3 
(n=1) 

Patient Self Injurious 
Behavior 

Incidents 
 Zero 

           1 

> 2

Rate=Patient Self Injurious Behavior Incidents per 
1,000 PCS visits  

Q1: Rate=0.0 (n=0) 
Q2: Rate=0.0 (n=0) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

Rate=0.0 
(n=0) 

Medication Errors 

Identify common 
type, number of 
errors 

Rate 
           X = 0 

           X < 1.1 

           X > 1.1 

Rate=Medication Errors per 10,000 Doses Dispensed 



3 

2020 Q2 MILWAUKEE COUNTY  
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIVISION 

INPATIENT DASHBOARD 

 

Quarter YTD Quality Indicator Threshold Description 

Q1: Rate=2.1% (n=4) 
Q2: Rate=0.6% (n=1) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

1.4% 
(n=5) 

Percent of patients 
returning to Acute 
Adult within 7 days 

Rate 
           X < 3% 

           X = 3% 

           X > 3% 

Rate=Percent of patient admissions occurring within 
7 days of patient's prior discharge from the program 

Q1: Rate=8.2% (n=16) 
Q2: Rate=8.2% (n=13) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

8.2% 
(n=29) 

Percent of patients 
returning to Acute 
Adult within 30 days 

Rate 
           X < 9.6% 

           X = 9.6% 

           X > 9.6% 

Rate=Percent of patient admissions occurring within 
30 days of patient's prior discharge from the 
program 

Q1: 71.7% positive 
Q2: 77.3% positive 
Q3: 
Q4: 

74.0% 

Percent of patients 
responding positively 
to MHSIP satisfaction 
survey 

Rate 
           X > 75% 

           X = 75% 

           X < 75% 

Rate=Percent of patients selecting "Agree" or 
"Strongly Agree" to all survey items 
Q1: 96 completed surveys (49% response rate) 
Q2: 70 completed surveys (44% response rate) 
Q3: 
Q4:  

Q1: 66.3% positive 
Q2: 65.6% positive 
Q3: 
Q4: 

66.0% 

If I had a choice of 
hospitals, I would still 
choose this one. 
(MHSIP Survey) 

Rate 
           X > 65% 

           X = 65% 

           X < 65% 

Rate=Percent of patients selecting "Agree" or 
"Strongly Agree" to survey item  
Q1: 96 completed surveys (49% response rate) 
Q2: 70 completed surveys (44% response rate) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

Q1: Rate=9.2 (n=35) 
Q2: Rate=7.5 (n=19) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

Rate=8.3 
(n=54) 

Behavioral Codes 

Rate 
           X < 9.2 

           X = 9.2 

           X > 9.2 

Rate=Behavioral codes per 1,000 patient days  
The objective of this metric is to not only to monitor 
the quantity/rate of codes called resulting in further 
treatment (Restraint and Seclusion). 
At the next meeting information regarding the 
outcomes will be reviewed. 

Q1: Rate=2.9 (n=11) 
Q2: Rate=5.1 (n=13) 
Q3:  
Q4: 

Rate=4.0 
(n=24) 

Physical Aggression - 
Patient/Patient 

Rate 
           X < 2.9 

           X = 2.9 

           X > 2.9 

Rate=Pt/Pt physical aggression incidents per 1,000 
patient days 
43A Incidents - Q1: 2 Q2: 0 
43B Incidents - Q1: 9 Q2: 10 
43C Incidents - Q1: 0 Q2: 3 

Q1: Rate=4.7 (n=18) 
Q2: Rate=2.0 (n=5) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

Rate=3.3 
(n=23) 

Physical Aggression - 
Patient/Staff 

Rate 
           X < 2.9 

           X = 2.9 

           X > 2.9 

Rate=Pt/Staff physical aggression incidents per 
1,000 patient days 
43A Incidents - Q1: 0 Q2: 0 
43B Incidents - Q1: 16 Q2: 4 
43C Incidents - Q1: 2 Q2: 1 

Target Key:   Better Than Expected  Expected Worse Than Expected 
Acute Adult 

Inpatient Service 



4 

In 2020 Q1, one female patient accounted for 14 of 
the 16 reported patient-to-staff physical aggression 
incidents on 43B. 

Q1: Rate=.52 (n=2) 
Q2: Rate=.72 (n=2) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

Rate=.62 
(n=4) 

Patient Elopement 

Incidents 
 Zero 

           1 

> 2

Rate=Patient elopements per 1,000 patient days 
43A Incidents - Q1: 1 Q2: 0 (patient exited the unit 
into hallway but was returned to unit by staff) 
43B Incidents - Q1: 1 Q2: 1 (patient exited the unit 
to hallway but was returned by staff, patient exited 
the unit to Children’s Hospital but was returned by 
Sheriff) 
43C Incidents - Q1: 0 Q2: 1 (patient broke glass to 
exit building but returned to unit by police) 

Q1: Rate=0.3 (n=1) 
Q2: Rate=0.0 (n=0) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

Rate=.15 
(n=1) 

Patient Self Injurious 
Behavior 

Incidents 
 Zero 

           1 

> 2

Rate=Patient Self Injurious Behavior Incidents per 
1,000 patient days 
43A Incidents - Q1: 0 Q2: 0 
43B Incidents - Q1: 0 Q2: 0 
43C Incidents - Q1: 1 Q2: 0 

Q1: Rate=1.11 (n=5) 
Q2: Rate=0.37 (n=1) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

Rate=.83 
(n=6) 

Medication Errors 

Rate 
           X < 1.1 

    X = 1.1 

           X > 1.1 

Rate=Medication errors per 10,000 administered 
doses 
43A Incidents - Q1: 2 Q2: 1  
43B Incidents - Q1: 2 Q2: 0  
43C Incidents - Q1: 1 Q2: 0 
For 2020 YTD, Acute Adult’s medication errors were: 
2-incorrect doses, 1-omitted dose, 1-incorrect time,
1-incorrect course of therapy, and 1-allergen to
patient

Q1: Rate=.38 (34.7 hrs) 
Q2: Rate=.21 (12.8 hrs) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

.31 
(47.5 hrs) 

HBIPS 2 - Hours of 
Physical Restraint 
Rate 

Rate 
           X < .38 

           X = .38 

      X > .38 

Rate=Hours that patients spent in physical restraints 
for every 1,000 hours of patient care 
43A Restraint Rate - Q1: .41 (12.9 hrs) Q2: .44 (7.2 hrs)  
43B Restraint Rate - Q1: .54 (16.4 hrs) Q2: .11 (2.5 hrs) 
43C Restraint Rate - Q1: .18 (5.4 hrs) Q2: .15 (3.1 hrs) 

Q1: Rate=.22 (19.8 hrs) 
Q2: Rate=.14 (8.6 hrs) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

.19 
(28.3 hrs) 

HBIPS 3 - Hours of 
Locked Seclusion Rate 

Rate 
           X < .29 

           X = .29 

           X > .29 

Rate=Hours that patients spent in seclusion for 
every 1,000 hours of patient care 
43A Seclusion Rate - Q1: .41 (12.8 hrs) Q2: .34 (5.6 hrs) 
43B Seclusion Rate - Q1: .00 (0.0 hrs) Q2: .04 (1.0 hrs) 
43C Seclusion Rate - Q1: .23 (7.0 hrs) Q2: .09 (2.0 hrs) 

Q1: Rate=26% (n=50) 
Q2: Rate=24% (n=38) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

25% 
(n=88) 

HBIPS 4 - Patients 
discharged on 
multiple antipsychotic 
medications 

Rate 
           X < 9.5% 

           X = 9.5% 

           X > 9.5% 

Rate=Percent of patients discharged from an 
inpatient psychiatric facility on 2 or more 
antipsychotic medications 

Q1: Rate=98% (n=49) 
Q2: Rate=92% (n=35) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

95% 
(n=84) 

HBIPS 5 - Patients 
discharged on 
multiple antipsychotic 
medications with 
appropriate 
justification 

Rate 
           X > 61% 

           X = 61% 

  X < 61% 

Rate=Percent of patients discharged from an 
inpatient psychiatric facility on 2 or more 
antipsychotic medications with appropriate 
justification 



5 

2020 Q2 MILWAUKEE COUNTY  
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIVISION 

INPATIENT DASHBOARD 

 

Quarter YTD Quality Indicator Threshold Description 

Q1: 2.9% (n=4) 
Q2: 2.4% (n=1) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

Rate=2.7% 
(n=5) 

Percent of patients 
returning to Acute 
Adult within 7 days 

Rate 
           X < 5.0% 

           X = 5.0% 

           X > 5.0% 

Rate=Percent of patient admissions occurring within 
7 days of patient's prior discharge from the program 

Q1: 9.3% (n=13) 
Q2: 4.8% (n=2) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

Rate=8.2% 
(n=15) 

Percent of patients 
returning to Acute 
Adult within 30 days 

Rate 
           X < 9.6% 

           X = 9.6% 

           X > 9.6% 

Rate=Percent of patient admissions occurring within 
30 days of patient's prior discharge from the 
program 

Q1: 70.8% positive 
Q2: 63.2% positive 
Q3: 
Q4: 

69.7% 
Percent of patients 
responding positively 
to satisfaction survey 

Rate 
  X > 75% 

           X = 75% 

           X < 75% 

Rate=Percent of patients selecting "Agree" and 
"Strongly Agree" to all survey items 
Q1: 22 completed surveys (16% response rate) 
Q2: 4 completed surveys (10% response rate) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

Q1: 68.2% positive 
Q2: 100.0% positive 
Q3: 
Q4: 

73.1% 
Overall, I am 
satisfied with the 
services I received. 
(CAIS Youth Survey) 

Rate 
           X > 75% 

           X = 75% 

           X < 75% 

Rate=Percent of patients selecting "Agree" and 
“Strongly Agree" to survey item 
Q1: 22 completed surveys (16% response rate) 
Q2: 4 completed surveys (10% response rate) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

Q1: Rate=8.0 (n=5) 
Q2: Rate=4.3 (n=1) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

Rate=6.1 
(n=6) 

Behavioral Codes 
(Code 1) 

Rate 
           X < 8.0 

           X = 8.0 

           X > 8.0 

The objective of this metric is to not only to monitor 
the quantity of codes but of the codes called and 
how many of them resulted in further treatment 
with restraint and/or seclusion. 
For this meeting the only number we will have is the 
rate/number of codes but at the next meeting we 
will have the results of the codes. 

Q1: Rate=4.8 (n=3) 
Q2: Rate=0.0 (n=0) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

Rate=2.4 
(n=3) 

Physical Aggression - 
Patient/Patient 

Incidents 
           Zero 

           2 or Less 

> 2

Rate=Pt/Pt physical aggression incidents per 1,000 
patient days 

Target Key:   Better Than Expected   Expected Worse Than Expected 
Child Adolescent 

Inpatient Service (CAIS) 



6 

Q1: Rate=0.0 (n=0) 
Q2: Rate=4.3 (n=1) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

Rate=2.2 
(n=1) 

Physical Aggression - 
Patient/Staff 

Incidents 
           Zero 

           2 or Less 

> 2

Rate=Pt/Staff physical aggression incidents per 
1,000 patient days 

Q1: Rate=0.0 (n=0) 
Q2: Rate=0.0 (n=0) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

Rate=0.0 
(n=0) 

Patient Elopement 

Incidents 
 Zero 

           1 

> 2

Rate=Patient elopements per 1,000 patient days 

Q1: Rate=0.0 (n=0) 
Q2: Rate=0.0 (n=0) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

Rate=0.0 
(n=0) 

Patient Self Injurious 
Behavior 

Incidents 
 Zero 

           1 

> 2

Rate=Patient self-injurious behavior Incidents per 
1,000 patient days 

Q1: Rate=3.24 (n=1) 
Q2: Rate=7.54 (n=1) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

Rate=4.53 
(n=2) 

Medication Errors 

Rate 
           X < 1.1 

           X = 1.1 

           X > 1.1 

Rate=Medication errors per 10,000 doses 
administered  

For 2020 YTD, CAIS’ medication errors were 2-
omitted doses 

Q1: Rate=.72 (10.8 hrs) 
Q2: Rate=.13 (0.7 hrs) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

.56 
(11.5 hrs) 

HBIPS 2 - Hours of 
Physical Restraint 
Rate 

Rate 
           X < .38 

           X = .38 

           X > .38 

Rate=Hours that patients spent in physical restraints 
for every 1,000 hours of patient care 

Q1: Rate=.08 (n=1.3 hrs) 
Q2: Rate=.00 (0.0 hrs) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

.06 
(1.3 hrs) 

HBIPS 3 - Hours of 
Locked Seclusion 
Rate 

Rate 
           X < .29 

           X = .29 

           X > .29 

Rate=Hours that patients spent in seclusion for 
every 1,000 hours of patient care 

Q1: Rate=3.6% (n=5) 
Q2: Rate=0.0% (n=0) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

2.8% 
(n=5) 

HBIPS 4 - Patients 
discharged on 
multiple 
antipsychotic 
medications 

Rate 
           X < 3% 

           X = 3% 

           X > 3% 

Rate=Percent of patients discharged from an 
inpatient psychiatric facility on 2 or more 
antipsychotic medications 

Q1: Rate=80% (n=4)  
Q2: N/A 
Q3: 
Q4: 

80% 
(n=4) 

HBIPS 5 - Patients 
discharged on 
multiple 
antipsychotic 
medications with 
appropriate 
justification 

Rate 
    X > 61% 

           X = 61% 

           X < 61% 

Rate=Percent of patients discharged from an 
inpatient psychiatric facility on 2 or more 
antipsychotic medications with appropriate 
justification 



7 

2020 Q2 MILWAUKEE COUNTY  
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIVISION 

INPATIENT DASHBOARD 

 

Quarter YTD Quality Indicator Threshold Description 

Q1: Rate=.43 (45.5 hrs) 
Q2: Rate=.20 (13.5 hrs) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

.34 
(59.0 hrs) 

HBIPS 2 - Hours of 
Physical Restraint 
Rate 

Rate 
           X < .38 

           X = .38 

           X > .38 

Rate=Hours that patients spent in physical restraints 
for every 1,000 hours of patient care 

Q1: Rate=.20 (21.0 hrs) 
Q2: Rate=.13 (8.6 hrs) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

.17 
(29.6 hrs) 

HBIPS 3 - Hours of 
Locked Seclusion Rate 

Rate 
           X < .29 

           X = .29 

           X > .29 

Rate=Hours that patients spent in seclusion for 
every 1,000 hours of patient care 

Q1: 96% (n=53)  
Q2: 92% (n=35) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

95% 
(n=88) 

HBIPS 5 - Patients 
discharged on 
multiple antipsychotic 
medications with 
appropriate 
justification 

Rate 
           X > 61% 

           61% 

           X < 61% 

Rate=Patients discharged from an inpatient 
psychiatric facility on 2 or more antipsychotic 
medications with appropriate justification 

Q1: 99% (n=277) 
Q2: 98% (n=191) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

99% 
(n=468) 

Screening for 
metabolic disorders 

Rate 
           X > 74% 

           X = 74% 

           X < 74% 

Rate=Patients discharged on antipsychotic 
medications who had a body mass index, blood 
pressure, blood sugar, and cholesterol level 
screenings in the past year 

Q1: 33% (n=78) 
Q2: N/A  
Q3: N/A 
Q4: 

33% 
(n=78) 

Patient influenza 
immunization 

Rate 
           X > 83% 

           X = 83% 

           X < 83% 

Rate=Patients assessed and given influenza 
vaccination (time period 10/1 – 3/31) 

Q1: 77% (n=20)  
Q2: 42% (n=10) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

60% 
(n=30) 

SUB 2 - Alcohol use 
brief intervention 
provided or offered 

Rate 
           X > 83% 

           X = 83% 

           X < 83% 

Rate=Patients with alcohol abuse who received or 
refused a brief intervention during their inpatient 
stay. 

Q1: 58% (n=15) 
Q2: 33% (n=8) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

46% 
(n=23) 

SUB 2a - Alcohol use 
brief intervention 
provided 

Rate 
           X > 74% 

           X = 74% 

           X < 74% 

Rate=Patients with alcohol abuse who received a 
brief intervention during their inpatient stay. 

Target Key:   Better Than Expected  Expected Worse Than Expected 

Acute Inpatient 

Performance Measures 

Reported to CMS 



8 

Q1:100% (n=128)  
Q2:100% (n=91)  
Q3: 
Q4: 

100% 
(n=219) 

SUB 3 - Alcohol and 
other drug use 
disorder treatment 
provided or offered at 
discharge 

Rate 
           X > 70% 

     X = 70% 

           X < 70% 

Rate=Patients who screened positive for an alcohol 
or substance abuse disorder during their inpatient 
stay who, at discharge, either; received or refused a 
prescription for medications to treat their alcohol or 
drug use disorder, or received or refused a referral 
for addiction treatment 

Q1: 35% (n=45) 
Q2: 57% (n=52) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

44% 
(n=97) 

SUB 3a - Alcohol and 
other drug use 
disorder treatment at 
discharge 

Rate 
           X > 59% 

           X = 59% 

           X < 59% 

Rate=Patients who screened positive for an alcohol 
or substance abuse disorder during their inpatient 
stay who, at discharge, either; received a 
prescription for medications to treat their alcohol or 
drug use disorder, or received a referral for 
addiction treatment 

Q1: 82% (n=58) 
Q2: 82% (n=49) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

82% 
(n=107) 

TOB 2 - Tobacco use 
treatment provided or 
offered 

Rate 
           X > 81% 

           X = 81% 

           X < 81% 

Rate=Patients who use tobacco and who received or 
refused counseling to quit and received or refused 
medications to help them quit tobacco during their 
hospital stay 

Q1: 52% (n=37) 
Q2: 52% (n=31) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

  

53% 
(n=68) 

TOB 2a - Tobacco use 
treatment (during the 
hospital stay) 

Rate 
           X > 46% 

      X = 46% 

           X < 46% 

Rate=Patients who use tobacco and who received 
counseling to quit and received medications to help 
them quit tobacco during their hospital stay 

Q1: 54% (n=38) 
Q2: 37% (n=22) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

46% 
(n=60) 

TOB 3 - Tobacco use 
treatment provided or 
offered at discharge 

Rate 
           X > 58% 

           X = 58% 

           X < 58% 

Rate=Patients who use tobacco and at discharge 
received or refused a referral for outpatient 
counseling AND received or refused a prescription 
for medications to help them quit. 

Q1: 6% (n=4) 
Q2: 2% (n=1) 
Q3: 
Q4: 

4% 
(n=5) 

TOB 3a - Tobacco use 
treatment provided at 
discharge 

Rate 
           X > 18% 

           X = 18% 

           X < 18% 

Rate=Patients who use tobacco and at discharge 
received a referral for outpatient counseling AND 
received a prescription for medications to help them 
quit 

2018: 29.4% 
FUH 30 - Follow-up 
after hospitalization 
for mental illness 

Rate 
           X > 50% 

           X = 50% 

           X < 50% 

Rate=Patients hospitalized for mental illness who 
received follow-up care from an outpatient mental 
healthcare provider within 30 days of discharge. 
CMS calculates this measure based on Medicare 
claims data and reports BHD’s performance on the 
https://data.medicare.gov/data/hospital-compare 
website annually. 

2018: 5.9% 
FUH 7 - Follow-up 
after hospitalization 
for mental illness 

Rate 
           X > 28% 

           X = 28% 

           X < 28% 

Rate=Patients hospitalized for mental illness who 
received follow-up care from an outpatient mental 
healthcare provider within 7 days of discharge. 
CMS calculates this measure based on Medicare 
claims data and reports BHD’s performance on the 
https://data.medicare.gov/data/hospital-compare 
website annually. 

https://data.medicare.gov/data/hospital-compare
https://data.medicare.gov/data/hospital-compare


9 

2018: 19.4% 
CMS reports BHD is “no 
different than the 
national rate” 

READMN 30 IPF - 30 
day all cause 
unplanned 
readmission following 
psychiatric 
hospitalization in an 
inpatient psychiatric 
facility (IPF) 

Rate 
           X > 20% 

           X = 20% 

           X < 20% 

Rate=Patients readmitted to any hospital within 30 
days of discharge from the inpatient psychiatric 
facility 
CMS calculates this measure based on Medicare 
claims data and reports BHD’s performance on the 
https://data.medicare.gov/data/hospital-compare  
website annually. 

https://data.medicare.gov/data/hospital-compare


Mental Health Board 
Quality Subcommittee Meeting 

August 3, 2020 

Sentinel Event Committee 

The Behavioral Health Division reviewed a total of two events in 2019. Both events were 
deaths by suicide that occurred in clients receiving case management provided by a 
community provider.  

In 2018 the Behavioral Health Division reviewed 15 total events. Those included 8 Sentinel 
Events and 7 Other Events.  

2019 Root Cause Analysis Findings Themes 

• Inadequate risk assessment
• Dual diagnosis not sufficiently addressed
• Community agencies were not consistently in compliance with the BHD CARS

Missed Appointment and Inability to Reach Client Policy

Current Happenings 

• So far this year the Sentinel Event Committee has reviewed three cases – one death
by suicide and two suicide attempts.

• Committee members are currently engaged in an RCA training program provided by
the Institute for Healthcare Improvement. Their process, RCA2, is endorsed by The
Joint Commission for application with Event Reviews. Following completion of this
training the BHD Sentinel Event Policy and procedures will be updated in
accordance with recommendations identified during the current Systems
Improvement Agreement.

Quality Committee Item 8



2019 BHD Sentinel Events
2 incidents reviewed

Community
100%

Location of Event

0

2

4

6

4 - 17 18 - 29 30 - 39 40 - 49 50 - 59 60 - 69

N

4 - 17 18 - 29 30 - 39 40 - 49 50 - 59 60 - 69
N 0 1 0 0 1 0

Patient Age
Average Age: 38 yrs male, 45 yrs female; Gender: 73% male, 27% female

0 2 4 6 8 10

Sentinel event

Other

2

0

Level of Review

0

2

4

6

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

1

0

1

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Events

Month

Month of Event

CONFIDENTIAL 

Yes
100%

Significant AODA Component to Event 
33% (n=5) of events reviewed had a significant AODA component

n=2

0

2

4

6

8

2

0 0 0

N

Program (Open with/last contact)

0

2

4

6

8

Suicide

0
Days

Average Days After Last BHD Contact 

Suicide
100%

Type of Event

n=2

n=2



Annual Action Items for the Mental Health Board Quality Committee 

Refer to QAPI/Patient Safety Plan 

• Reviewing, evaluating and approving the BHD Hospital QAPI/Patient Safety plan annually;
(page 7)

• Determination of the number and distinct improvement projects conducted annually;
(pages 7 and 13)

• Supporting and guiding implementation of quality improvement activities at BHD on-going;
(pages 7 and 13)

• Hospital Scope of Services policy and procedure is to be reviewed and updated annually
• Assess needs and request financial resources to ensure quality improvement activities are

properly planned and budgeted on an annual basis (page 8)
• Mental Health Board Quality Committee will complete an annual Governance of Quality

Assessment (page 9)

BHD QAPI Committee Meetings 

• Monthly; first Friday of every month at 11:00 a.m.

BHD Patient Safety Committee Meetings 

• Every other month/Six times per year; first Thursday of every other month at 9: 00 a.m.

Quality Committee of the Board (2020) 

• March 2, 2020 at 10 a.m.
• June 1, 2020 at 10 a.m.
• August 3, 2020 at 10 a.m.
• October 5, 2020 at 10 a.m.
• December 7, 2020 at 10 a.m.

BHD Enterprise-Wide Quality Management Services Committee; (a rotation of operations/PI, education 
and data analysis/planning) 

• Monthly:  Fourth Friday at 8:30 a.m.

Notes: 

8/03/20 jb 

Quality Committee Item 11



15























































16








	Item 2
	Item 4
	Item 6
	Item 7
	Item 8
	Item 9
	Item 10
	Item 11
	Item 12
	Item 13
	Item 14
	Item 15
	Item 16



